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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I am from the

          3  west side of Manhattan but so honored to be in the

          4  Bronx today as Chair of the Committee on Technology

          5  In Government, and to welcome all of you here today.

          6  We will have introductions of this amazing broadband

          7  task force, but before we go further, I want to

          8  introduce the President of Bronx Community College,

          9  the President is Carolyn Williams, and we are so

         10  honored to be here today, we would love to have her

         11  say a few words.

         12                 Madam President.

         13                 DR. WILLIAMS: Thank you very much,

         14  Gale. I'm delighted to welcome all of you to Bronx

         15  Community College, and to be the host for the first

         16  New York City broadband advisory committees public

         17  hearing on affordable broadband connectivity.

         18                 You're almost in time, because we had

         19  a few starts and stops, but to visit the campus as

         20  it moves into the spring season.

         21                 As you have probably noticed, we have

         22  a very beautiful campus and it's really kind of

         23  difficult to determine which season shows the campus

         24  at its best.

         25                 We are wonderful when we're in the
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          2  winter wonderland, we are lovely in spring with all

          3  of our flowering trees, and, of course, summer is

          4  delightful because we have not just our students but

          5  lots of young students from neighboring schools on

          6  our campus.

          7                 So, we invite you back during any

          8  season to see us in our splendor.

          9                 The other thing that I'd like to

         10  encourage, is that if you have any time after the

         11  hearing to kind of move around the campus, we have

         12  three landmarked buildings, and of course the one

         13  that you're in is one of them, and certainly the

         14  most magnificent of all of them surrounding the

         15  building in a kind of crescent shape is the Hall of

         16  Fame. So, if you have any time, please walk through

         17  the colonnade of the Hall of Fame for great

         18  Americans and go upstairs and look at the rotunda. I

         19  think you will be very surprised and pleasantly

         20  pleased at the building.

         21                 I'm from the generation that soft

         22  computers come into our lives and revolutionize

         23  forever the way we get and send information, and

         24  then with the advent of the Internet, all our lives

         25  were changed.
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          2                 It is my understanding that this

          3  hearing seeks your input into how to assure that

          4  high speed connectivity will be available and

          5  affordable for all New Yorkers.

          6                 I salute the New York City Broadband

          7  Advisory Committee and the New York City Council

          8  members for your part in convening this meeting and

          9  hope that this effort will ultimately result in wide

         10  public access to this essential tool for 21st

         11  century communications.

         12                 Again, welcome to all of our elected

         13  officials, to the Committee and to the members of

         14  the audience. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 There are many people to thank at the

         18  college. Certainly Carol Pina Martinelli, but

         19  particularly Carol White, and the reason was not

         20  only was she helpful, but when Council Member Oliver

         21  Koppell entered, he can tell you the story of the

         22  wonderful dialogue that they just had.

         23                 So, I'd love to hear from him and

         24  from another wonderful Council Member, Helen Diane

         25  Foster, and we also have a representative from
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          2  Council Member Maria Baez, who is head of the

          3  delegation. Council Member Koppell, Council Member

          4  of the Committee.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you

          6  very much, Council Member Brewer. I want to welcome

          7  everyone to Northwest Bronx. It's not quite my

          8  district, by very close, and this is a wonderful

          9  campus, and I am particularly proud of the Hall of

         10  Fame. Since Gale mentioned it, I have to follow-up

         11  and say that many years ago when I was in the State

         12  Assembly, and when, unfortunately money wasn't there

         13  to keep up the Hall of Fame, we got some State

         14  appropriations and we kind of renewed the Hall of

         15  Fame, and have now put in so that the new busts, and

         16  I'm very pleased that the college has maintained it.

         17  It used to be a highlight of sightseeing tours in

         18  New York City. Unfortunately, the buses don't come

         19  up here as much as they used to, but you should not

         20  leave without walking through there, and since we

         21  are today talking about extension of technology, I

         22  might point out that among others in the Hall of

         23  Fame, the busts in the Hall of Fame include Thomas

         24  Edison, George Westinghouse, and George Washington

         25  Carver, we're in the presence here, if you will,
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          2  from the busts of great leaders of science and

          3  technology, and I suspect, if I may, that if the

          4  Hall of Fame remains and is perpetuated someday

          5  maybe Bill Gates will be there too.

          6                 Have a good conference.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Good morning.

          8  You're not in my district either, but I claim Bronx

          9  Community College. First, when we have busts in the

         10  Hall of Fame, I think we're going to have Council

         11  Member Gale Brewer, and I just want to thank you,

         12  Gale, for pushing the technology and making sure

         13  that us at the City Council jump on board. And, of

         14  course, to President Williams, it's always good to

         15  see women running things, and I have a youth forum

         16  every year that brings together about 400 young

         17  people in Bronx Community College, always opens

         18  their doors for us, which is great, and just the

         19  history of -- I remember Dr. Roscoe Lee Brown was a

         20  mentor to me when he was president, so there is just

         21  so much history. So, I welcome everyone who is not

         22  from the Bronx to the Bronx to almost my district,

         23  and I look forward -- I'm here to learn, because

         24  there is just so much about technology that I don't

         25  know, but more importantly we need to make sure that
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          2  this is as much as possible an even playing ground,

          3  so that everyone, no matter what your background or

          4  your economic status has advantage to this type of

          5  technology. So, I'm look forward to hearing.

          6                 So, thank you, Gale, for doing this

          7  and, of course, for coming to the greatest borough

          8  in the City to do it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: The reason we're

         10  here in the Bronx as first, we're doing five

         11  boroughs, this is a result of a bill that passed in

         12  December '05, creating this task force, and

         13  certainly the Mayor's Office, headed by certainly

         14  the wonderful Wendy Lader, who has put in hours on

         15  this topic, we'll hear more about what Economic

         16  Development Corporation is doing to further

         17  broadband. It's a lot in the City of New York, and

         18  we'll hear from every one of the panel members and

         19  certainly from you.

         20                 But the Bronx is so great for many

         21  reasons. Obviously the Borough President, when he

         22  gets here he'll say, and talk about what he's

         23  interested in, and I don't want to dis any of the

         24  other Borough Presidents, but he knows more about

         25  technology than all of them put together.
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          2                 Second, in terms of the Bronx, you

          3  have done incredible work with Mount Hope and with

          4  Per Scholas on housing. Fordham University in the

          5  Bronx is the leader on education and technology.

          6  SoBRO has pioneered economic development and

          7  technology and NYSERNet has done amazing work, in

          8  terms of academic and cultural institutions. You'll

          9  hear more about that, and BronxNet is a star.

         10                 There is so much more about the

         11  Bronx, but you should be very proud as leaders in

         12  this growing world of technology and broadband, and

         13  making sure that it's available to everyone, not

         14  just a few.

         15                 That's why we're here today. To talk

         16  about what the future holds five to ten years, and

         17  to make sure it's not technology for technology

         18  sake, but it's here as a tool to be able to

         19  participate and used for everyone.

         20                 I want to just say a couple of thank

         21  yous and then we'll turn it over to David Birdsell,

         22  who is going to guide us through this morning's

         23  program.

         24                 I want to thank Rose Rodriguez who is

         25  here from Senator Clinton's Office, and I just want
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          2  to thank a few people from the City Council,

          3  certainly Jeff Baker and Colleen Pagter, who are the

          4  individuals from the Speaker's Office who put

          5  today's hearing together, and in our office Lyon

          6  Maroler, Fabrize Albert, Tibo Fente, David Knockman,

          7  Alex Pearson, Jennifer Socolar, Shula Warren, Rob

          8  Williamson, and, of course, the also unbelievable

          9  Bruce Lye (names spelled phonetically). Thank you

         10  very much. Let's give them a big hand for all the

         11  work that they did.

         12                 And now I'd like to turn it over to

         13  Dean David Birdsell to talk about the panel and the

         14  work at hand today. Thank you very much.

         15                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much,

         16  Council Member Brewer. I am very pleased to chair

         17  the panel today. We have a very long witness list.

         18  Let me tell you just a little bit about how we're

         19  going to operate.

         20                 We have a number of people whose

         21  names you will see in front of you on the list that

         22  gives you the agenda for today. And we will hear

         23  first from those people.

         24                 If you are one of those people and

         25  you have not signed in, please do sign in. We do
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          2  need your card in order to hear testimony, and if

          3  you have not contacted the office and spoken with

          4  one of the people Gale thanked just a moment ago,

          5  please do also go to the back desk, just to see just

          6  as you come in and fill out a card so we'll know

          7  you'd like to testify today.

          8                 We would like to ask everyone to keep

          9  their comments, please, given the number of people

         10  who would like to speak about this critical issue,

         11  to two to three minutes, and then panel members may

         12  have questions after you are finished.

         13                 I would, however, like everybody on

         14  the panel, you have biographies of each of the

         15  individuals in front of you, but just to provide

         16  name and associations so people know who is asking

         17  those questions, and if I could start with Neil

         18  Pariser, down on my right.

         19                 MR. PARISER: Yes, thank you. Neil

         20  Pariser. I'm from SoBRO, the South Bronx Overall

         21  Economic Development Committee.

         22                 MS. LADER: I'm Wendy Lader with the

         23  New York City Economic Development Corporation.

         24                 MR. REGAL: Thank you. My name is

         25  Bruce Regal, from the New York City Law Department.
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          2  I'm here representing Mitchel Ahlbaum, who was

          3  unable to join us today. Mitch is with the

          4  Department of Information, Technology and

          5  Communications.

          6                 MR. DUVDEVANI: I'm Avi Duvdevani. I'm

          7  with the New York City Housing Authority.

          8                 MS. STOCK: Elizabeth Stock, I'm with

          9  Computers for Youth.

         10                 DEAN BIRDSELL: David Birdsell, School

         11  of Public Affairs, Baruch College.

         12                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Jose Rodriguez, from

         13  the Hispanic Information and Telecommunications

         14  Network, HITN.

         15                 MR. DUNNE: Tom Dunne, Verizon.

         16                 MR. SZARFARC: Howard Szarfarc, Time

         17  Warner Cable, New York City.

         18                 MR. RASIEJ: Andrew Rasiej, Founder of

         19  MOUSE.

         20                 MR. GILBERT: John Gilbert, the Rudin

         21  Organization.

         22                 MR. THOMPSON: I'm Nick Thompson from

         23  WIRED Magazine.

         24                 DEAN BIRDSELL: I would like to call

         25  the first of our scheduled speakers up to the
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          2  podium. The podium in question is the one that you

          3  see right in front of you, to my left, your right.

          4  Just in front of the stage, please. And we would

          5  like to hear first from James Haggard, who is Deputy

          6  Chief Information Officer for the City University of

          7  New York.

          8                 MR. HAGGARD: Good morning, Council

          9  Member Brewer, members of the Broadband Advisory

         10  Committee, members of the Committee on Technology in

         11  Government, staff and guests. My name is James

         12  Haggard, I'm the Deputy Chief Information Officer

         13  for the City University of New York. On behalf of

         14  our Chancellor Matthew Goldstein, and our CIO, Brian

         15  Cohen, thank you for the opportunity for the City

         16  University to testify about the importance of

         17  bringing affordable broadband Internet access, to

         18  every resident, business and non-profit organization

         19  in New York City.

         20                 As I prepared for my remarks today, I

         21  read through Local Law 635-A and was pleased to find

         22  such thoughtful consideration and understanding, as

         23  the increasing importance of broadband Internet

         24  access to improve the quality of life for everyone

         25  in the City.
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          2                 At CUNY we've had a long history with

          3  the Internet, beginning with its precursors, BitNet

          4  and participation in ArpaNet, and in the late 1970s

          5  and early 1980s, we have with the support of the

          6  City and State continued to invest in the

          7  University's private network, as well as access to

          8  the public Internet.

          9                 Among various questions that the

         10  Committee has set for itself, I would like to focus

         11  on the question, why is fast affordable Internet

         12  connection important? I believe the Committee has a

         13  very good understanding of the importance of high

         14  speed Internet connectivity to the institution that

         15  I represent here today.

         16                 The Internet has become a

         17  transformative force in higher education whose

         18  impact we're still working to fully grasp.

         19                 Fundamentally in higher education the

         20  Internet is lowering barriers, barriers of time and

         21  barriers of space. CUNY, as most universities, is

         22  using the Internet as a tool to extend its reach

         23  outside the traditional boundaries of campus and

         24  schedules.

         25                 Academic and administrative systems
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          2  are being opened up to constituents, the students we

          3  educate and the communities we serve, so they have

          4  better access to the information they need on

          5  schedule that fits them.

          6                 While the opening of administrative

          7  systems is critical to our ability to improve

          8  service to our students, it's the core educational

          9  mission of the University where the Internet has the

         10  potential to make the most impact.

         11                 CUNY has, over the last several

         12  years, made a concerted strategic effort to make an

         13  increasing amount of our educational course content

         14  available over the Internet. Today, there are over

         15  38,000 courses serving over 100,000 students with

         16  some portion of their content offered on line.

         17                 Recently the University launched the

         18  CUNY on-line BA program, our first wholly on-line

         19  baccalaureate degree program. Clearly, the

         20  University believes in the power of the Internet,

         21  whether used as a vehicle for providing supplemental

         22  materials to students with different learning styles

         23  or a fully on-line program targeted to working

         24  adults who might otherwise forego completing a

         25  degree.
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          2                 It's a fundamental part of our future

          3  and the future of higher education. At City

          4  University we take a great deal of provide in our

          5  mission in history of providing affordable, quality

          6  higher education to the residents of New York City.

          7                 We are in the business of creating

          8  new opportunities and expanding horizons for all,

          9  including, or perhaps especially those of us with

         10  challenging personal circumstances - students with

         11  demanding family obligations; students with

         12  difficult financial circumstances; students whose

         13  native language may not be English.

         14                 The promise of the Internet, once we

         15  have affordable broadband for all, is that we will

         16  be able to reduce or even eliminate some of the

         17  barriers to academic success and the social and

         18  economic empowerment that comes with it.

         19                 So, how does ubiquitious affordable

         20  broadband access help? It goes back to my earlier

         21  comment about lowering barriers to time and space.

         22                 Some implications are obvious, would

         23  likely be our first priorities. Think of the student

         24  who misses a class because a child is sick. Think of

         25  the student being able to watch the instructor
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          2  deliver the lecture they missed and be able to

          3  access the slides, videos and other materials that

          4  were referred to in the class through the Internet.

          5  Now imagine such a student to meet with a professor

          6  in real time interactive video chat over broadband

          7  connection. Eliminates the need for a trip to the

          8  campus and back. Opportunities improve, outcomes

          9  improve, and lives improve.

         10                 Thank you for this opportunity. We at

         11  CUNY appreciate your commitment to New York City

         12  public and in particular, the students of the City

         13  University of New York. Thank you.

         14                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Haggard.

         16                 Are there any questions for Mr.

         17  Haggard?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I have a

         19  question. When are we going to have every single

         20  campus wired in all CUNY systems?

         21                 MR. HAGGARD: Every single campus

         22  wired?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Yes, every single

         24  campus. Are all campuses in all CUNY able to get

         25  access anywhere on campus?
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          2                 MR. HAGGARD: All campuses are wired

          3  and have network access in all of our

          4  system-provided facilities.

          5                 We are increasing our efforts to

          6  extend that access to wireless networks throughout

          7  the campuses, some of which -- recently Queens

          8  College was on the intel most wired list. So, that's

          9  an ongoing effort for us and we're making large

         10  investments in the ability to have both wired and

         11  wireless access throughout the campuses.

         12                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Mr. Haggard, you

         13  mentioned that you have about 100,000 students that

         14  you serve with all nine courses; to what extent,

         15  expanding broadband to low-income areas, or areas

         16  that are not ready with broadband at this point

         17  would help you increase, provide more courses to

         18  those areas; is that a factor that you have

         19  considered?

         20                 MR. HAGGARD: Yes, absolutely. One of

         21  the challenges that we often face is being able to

         22  design our course offerings around what's generally

         23  available. So, if we can't count on our students

         24  having access ubiquitiously, it's very difficult to

         25  construct program offerings through our general
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          2  population. So, the broader the access, the better

          3  the access, the more effectively you can make use of

          4  it as a tool, and including particularly things like

          5  video, two-way video, things that actually require

          6  broadband access in a fundamental way.

          7                 DEAN BIRDSELL: I would like to thank

          8  Mr. Haggard.

          9                 MR. HAGGARD: Thank you.

         10                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you for your

         11  testimony, sir. And it gives me great pleasure to

         12  introduce the honorable Adolfo Carrion, Jr., Borough

         13  President of the Bronx.

         14                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT CARRION: Thank you.

         15  Thank you very much. Good morning, everyone. I'm

         16  just delighted to be here and I just want to welcome

         17  all of you to the beautiful Bronx Community College

         18  Campus that used to be the old NYU School of

         19  Engineering, a long time ago, pre-1973, before it

         20  was handed over to the City University of New York.

         21  And of course, you're sitting in not only a

         22  beautiful hall, but a historic hall, surrounded by

         23  the Hall of Fame for Great Americans, and the busts

         24  that are overlooking the Harlem River of many of the

         25  people who have contributed to the advancement of
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          2  this republic, and it's right here in the beautiful

          3  West Bronx, University Heights.

          4                 I want to thank Gale Brewer for her

          5  leadership and stepping forward, and I guess it was

          6  close to a year ago, or just about nine months ago,

          7  she came up to see me at the office and said,

          8  Adolfo, I'd love to come up and extend this

          9  conversation about broadband and access to broadband

         10  into the Bronx community, and we want to hear from

         11  people in the community, in the business community,

         12  the education community, about the issues that we

         13  face. We're going to take this conversation on the

         14  road, and we want to bring it to the Bronx, so I

         15  want to say thank you for that and for your

         16  leadership and for the members of the City Council

         17  that represent the Bronx, representatives Koppell

         18  and Foster, and, of course, Council Member Baez is

         19  represented by the Chief of Staff. To all of the

         20  participants that are part of this panel, and part

         21  of this conversation, it is an important

         22  conversation that we need to have.

         23                 I think access to broadband and the

         24  digital divide is one of the critical issues that we

         25  need to hurry up on, if we're going to close the
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          2  education gap, if we're going to close the economic

          3  gap, the opportunity gap, it's not simply a digital

          4  divide. You know, that's what we call it, but we

          5  understand what it translates into. It translates

          6  into an absence or a lack or a delay of opportunity

          7  for such a large segment of our population. And the

          8  Bronx is behind. We've advanced in many areas. You

          9  know, over the last few years we've invested a lot

         10  in computer labs and science labs and wiring schools

         11  and wireless schools and working with businesses to

         12  give them more access to the universe. But, still,

         13  if you look across the country and if you look at

         14  the major urban centers and you look at places like

         15  the Bronx, the gap is wider here than anywhere else.

         16                 And there is a coincidence between

         17  the income gap -- and I heard somebody yesterday say

         18  something about the fact that the top 300,000 income

         19  earners in the United States earn more money than

         20  the bottom 150 million. So that if you look at the

         21  correlation between access to information, access to

         22  data, economic opportunity, empowerment

         23  opportunities, and progress opportunities, and you

         24  look at the digital divide and the lack of access to

         25  broadband, there is a direct correlation. We have to
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          2  fix that, and I'm glad to be a host community today

          3  for this conversation and to be here at this

          4  beautiful campus of Bronx Community College.

          5                 I want to thank Dr. Carolyn Williams

          6  for opening up the campus and for her leadership

          7  here working with young students. We have about

          8  7,000 students -- 9,000 students. We're more

          9  overcrowded than what I thought. But if you look at

         10  the stats, 95 percent of households with an income

         11  of $85,000 and above have a computer and about

         12  almost 65 percent of those have access, regular

         13  access to information on the Internet. And then you

         14  look at the other side, where people making $25,000

         15  or less, 33 percent have access to a computer, and

         16  only about 14 percent actually get on the Internet

         17  in the new global conversation of information

         18  sharing.

         19                 So, there is the gap that needs to be

         20  filled. I'm glad that we're talking about this. It

         21  is absolutely an essential conversation for our

         22  future, and I simply want to say thank you to Gale

         23  and the City Council for their leadership on this

         24  issue.

         25                 Thank you all very much.
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          2                 One more thing, we need to give a

          3  shout out to one of the Bronx schools that are here.

          4  New Beginnings Bronx Middle School is here. Right

          5  there. Thank you for being here, guys. It's all

          6  about you.

          7                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you, Borough

          8  President Carrion.

          9                 I believe that Lillian

         10  Rodriguez-Lopez has yet to arrive, so we'd like to

         11  go on to the next witness on the list, Thomas

         12  Kamber, Executive Director of Older Adults

         13  Technology Services.

         14                 DR. KAMBER: Good morning. Thank you

         15  for having me, Council Member Brewer, Council

         16  Members Koppell and Marshall (sic), and also Borough

         17  President Carrion and members of the Committee. I

         18  appreciate having the opportunity to speak. I am the

         19  Executive Director of Older Adults Technology

         20  Services, which is a three-year-old non-profit

         21  organization, that helps connect older adults and

         22  senior citizens through the Internet, through

         23  training and intergenerational trainings at over 20

         24  sites around the City now. Last year we taught 622

         25  classes to senior citizens, and trained 1,190 people
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          2  across the various sites where we work. We have

          3  seven sites here in the Bronx, and I wanted to just

          4  speak briefly about the importance for broadband

          5  access for older adults and senior citizens. People

          6  typically see broadband as something that's

          7  important for younger people for education, for

          8  their futures, but they often don't recognize the

          9  importance of Internet access and technology for

         10  senior citizens and how critical that is for their

         11  lives for them to access things like Medicare

         12  information, workforce information, even people who

         13  want to stay employed past the age of 60, and also

         14  for our purposes, the number one thing that we find

         15  it does, is it connects older adults to the outside

         16  world.

         17                 And, so, the principal challenge that

         18  people have that we're finding is social isolation,

         19  which many seniors in New York suffer from. We have

         20  been working together in the Bronx with a number of

         21  partners on a project principally with Per Scholas

         22  where we are, with the support of the Samuels

         23  Foundation, to provide in-training to 500

         24  lower-income older adults and Per Scholas is

         25  providing them with free hardware, free desktops
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          2  that have been installed in their homes, and we've

          3  already trained and given away -- trained 190 people

          4  and given away the machines, then had enormous

          5  waiting lists at all the sites that we had been

          6  working at. It's been a very popular program, and

          7  what we're finding is that the training is extremely

          8  helpful for people. They really benefit from getting

          9  the information about how to use the Internet. The

         10  computer hardware is getting both cheaper in the

         11  market side and also there are organizations like

         12  Per Scholas that are providing desktops and able to

         13  have even more capacity to give away computers. But

         14  with the low-income seniors that we serve who often

         15  have, there are 50,000 people, senior citizens

         16  living alone with incomes of under $9,000 this year.

         17  They can't afford broadband access. So, we're

         18  calling on the City to try to subsidize that and

         19  create some more affordable options for low-income

         20  senior citizens living alone to get access to the

         21  Internet.

         22                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you, Dr. Kamber.

         23                 Are there questions for Dr. Kamber?

         24                 MR. THOMPSON: Do you have any other

         25  specific examples of ways that low-income elderly
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          2  people need to use the Internet? You said accessing

          3  health information, but other stories or specific

          4  things that are particularly poignant?

          5                 DR. KAMBER: Yes. The most common

          6  stories that we get are around connecting to friends

          7  and family. So, after we train people we survey

          8  them, and 90 percent of them say they feel much more

          9  connected to their family and to their friends, as a

         10  result. And, so, a lot of the seniors that we serve

         11  are immigrants from other countries who don't have

         12  very good ways of connecting to their families back

         13  in the Caribbean or in Mexico, or even in China.

         14  We've served several hundred Chinese citizens, as

         15  well, seniors, down in the Lower East Side, and so

         16  what we hear are constantly stories about how the

         17  Internet suddenly enabled this person to see a

         18  picture of their grandchild that's in another state,

         19  or their relative who is living in another country.

         20  That comes up very commonly in addition to the

         21  health issues that are very common. And the health

         22  research piece of it is just as important as things

         23  like the Medicare. So, researching drugs,

         24  researching treatments, finding, comparing different

         25  medications and understanding what their doctors are
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          2  telling them is a very high prospect for people

          3  needing that.

          4                 And then the last piece of it I would

          5  say is probably government services. More and more

          6  services now are provided through different kind of

          7  screening mechanisms that use the computers an

          8  Internet as a way for people to understand what

          9  they're eligible for. So, programs like, SCRIE,

         10  which is a housing program for seniors, or even the

         11  transportation programs and things like that, to

         12  find out about these services you have to be on line

         13  half the time to get access to them, and that's been

         14  really critical for people.

         15                 MR. PARISER: You mentioned seniors

         16  are getting on line as well. In your experience with

         17  the population, have you had issues where seniors

         18  living in affordable housing have had connectivity

         19  problems, either through affordability or through

         20  lack of access?

         21                 DR. KAMBER: The number one challenge

         22  that we're hearing, the program we have with Per

         23  Scholas requires that the senior agree to sign up

         24  for Internet access, and these are not all living in

         25  affordable housing. They are people that we find

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  through the senior centers, through Rain (phonetic),

          3  but also through Mount Hope, which has a wonderful

          4  program that I'm sure they're going to talk about,

          5  which is wiring up buildings for Internet access.

          6  But for seniors who live alone, and we're finding

          7  many of those people in the centers, when we asked

          8  them to sign up to agree to do this, we have to

          9  spend a lot of time explaining why this is important

         10  and why hundreds of dollars a year that it's going

         11  to cost many of them to sign up for broadband,

         12  depending on where they live and what opportunities,

         13  what service they want to use, why that might be

         14  relevant or useful for them, in terms of the

         15  life-enhancing proposition. So.

         16                 MR. PARISER: Have you run into

         17  obstacles where it's simply not available where they

         18  live?

         19                 DR. KAMBER: We have not run into

         20  principle obstacles around that. I'm sure they

         21  exist, but that's not what we're hearing yet. We've

         22  only really had those conversations with the 200

         23  people that we've served in the Bronx so far. It

         24  wouldn't surprise me that that be the case, but it

         25  hasn't been our experience yet.
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          2                 MR. PARISER: Thank you.

          3                 DR. KAMBER:

          4                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

          5                 I'd like to call next Michael Max

          6  Knobbe, Executive Director of Bronxnet.

          7                 MR. KNOBBE: Good day. And thank you

          8  for this opportunity, Chair Brewer, of the

          9  Telecommunications on Government Committee in the

         10  City Council. Borough President Carrion,

         11  distinguished panel, all of you, thank you for this

         12  opportunity to testify on broadband.

         13                 I'm Michael Max Knobbe, Executive

         14  Director of Bronxnet Community Television, a

         15  not-for-profit community television station serving

         16  the people of the Bronx in this great borough. It's

         17  great to be here on this beautiful campus site of

         18  the first Hall of Fame in the world, and as we

         19  consider convergence of technology, as we consider

         20  broadband and access, we need to consider democracy

         21  in a digital age, production, training, training and

         22  access. And what we do at Bronxnet is we train

         23  thousands of Bronx residents and over 1,000 high

         24  school students, intermediate school students and

         25  college students in media production.
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          2                 As there is convergence in

          3  technology, we're reframing how we train, the media

          4  production workshops that we offer, the partnerships

          5  that we share with organizations in the Bronx,

          6  including institutions like Bronx Community College,

          7  Lehman College, where we're located and other great

          8  institutions in this Borough of universities and

          9  Borough of hospitals.

         10                 This is the Borough of universities,

         11  the Borough of hospitals. There is a tremendous

         12  demand for bandwidth, a tremendous demand to send

         13  data, and we send motion pictures to the public that

         14  have to do with issues relevant to our communities

         15  in our diverse borough. The folks that take training

         16  at Bronxnet, it's representative of our diverse

         17  populations in the Bronx. It's a way that they

         18  connect to our neighborhood street-by-street and to

         19  the world globally. We have producers from all over

         20  the world who share, who take training at Bronxnet

         21  and use our equipment for free, to share ideas and

         22  information with our neighbors and to transmit

         23  programming around the world. So, it's a global

         24  connection.

         25                 So, how, in this era of opportunity
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          2  and convergence, do we enhance the way we serve?

          3  Service is our bottom line. Well, it's through

          4  training workshops, digital movie making, digital

          5  productions, through enhanced technology.

          6                 Right now as we speak our engineers

          7  are installing servers in our master control.

          8  They're already installed but they're about to go on

          9  line so that we are providing digital content.

         10                 I know that through partnerships with

         11  our institutions like this, through getting the word

         12  out about the services of organizations, we're

         13  fulfilling an important mission, and in this new era

         14  of broadband, we will continue to serve, and we look

         15  to you and look forward to working with you on

         16  enhancing the way we serve the public.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you, Mr. Knobbe.

         19  Are there questions?

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 I would like to call next Gary

         22  Axelbank, who is Director of Public Relations from

         23  Monroe College. And I would also like to ask, while

         24  Mr. Axelbank is coming to the podium, if we could

         25  ask the next witness, who is Stuart Reid,
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          2  Co-Chairman of Urban Communications Transport, to

          3  come down to the front so that we'll be ready to

          4  move for the next witness.

          5                 Mr. Axelbank.

          6                 MR. AXELBANK: Thank you very much.

          7  Thank you very much for this opportunity and good

          8  morning, Council Member Brewer, the other Council

          9  members, and members of the Task Force.

         10                 For more than 70 years Monroe College

         11  has been providing educational opportunities,

         12  leading to meaningful careers for students in a wide

         13  variety of academic areas.

         14                 Our School of Information and

         15  Technology and our technological resources had been

         16  the staple of our offerings for generations.

         17                 Maybe in the past students could be

         18  successful without access to the latest technology,

         19  but we recognize that in this modern world, access

         20  to technology can no longer be optional. It is a

         21  hard and fast requirement for anyone seeking upward

         22  mobility, something the Borough President just

         23  alluded to a moment ago.

         24                 This is true in our classrooms and

         25  our labs, but also for our students in their homes,
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          2  neighborhoods and even the businesses that they

          3  frequent. Because Monroe College President Steven

          4  Jerome recognizes that we are part of the community

          5  that we serve, we're doing what we can to provide

          6  not only technology education, leading to degrees

          7  and careers, but also a service to the community at

          8  large to help them get in plain language on the air

          9  with wireless technology.

         10                 There is a couple of people I want to

         11  just point out. Professor John McMullen is a

         12  professor at Monroe College, who is here. Also Dana

         13  Spiegel, from New York City Wireless, is there.

         14  Together with NYC Wireless, Professor McMullen has

         15  made it a required part of his wireless technology

         16  course at Monroe that students undertake a project

         17  of wiring up a park, a business or other

         18  organization. They work in conjunction with NYC

         19  Wireless, and all the wireless technology provided

         20  by these installations is free to businesses and to

         21  the general public.

         22                 Since last spring, the list of who

         23  they have gotten on line is long. I will give you

         24  some samples. Professor McMullen's students have

         25  already wired Stuyvesant Park in Lower Manhattan,
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          2  which was the first solar powered access in NYC;

          3  Java's Brewin' in Harlem; Coogan's Restaurant on

          4  Broadway at 169th Street in Manhattan; Brooklyn

          5  Bridge Park; Madison Square Park; a Subway

          6  Restaurant in the Fordham section of the Bronx; the

          7  City Line Diner in Woodlawn; and the G Bakery in New

          8  Rochelle. They're also currently working with the

          9  Jerome/Gun Hill BID to get some of those Bronx

         10  businesses on the air.

         11                 So, Monroe College would like to

         12  encourage an aggressive approach to getting all of

         13  New York up to speed with the latest technology, and

         14  we are certainly prepared to do our part.

         15                 And I'll just simply make this plea,

         16  if anyone is interested in having their business

         17  not-for-profit organization or other locale, whether

         18  it be a park or other district, brought up to speed

         19  with the latest wireless technology, please see me,

         20  please see Professor McMullen or NYC Wireless before

         21  you leave today, or contact us in one form or

         22  another. We have some flyers that are out there and

         23  other information which we'll be happy to give, but

         24  we want to partner with you and your businesses and

         25  other organizations to get everybody up to speed.
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          2  The technology is there. I'd hate to sound like Al

          3  Gore, but all we need is the will to make it happen.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you. Are there

          6  questions for Mr. Axelbank?

          7                 MR. RASIEJ: I've got a question. What

          8  could New York City give you that would make your

          9  students' tasks easier?

         10                 MR. AXELBANK: Professor McMullen?

         11  He's my guru. I'd rather he answer than I answer.

         12                 MR. McMULLEN: Tom McMullen from

         13  Monroe College.

         14                 New York City hasn't given us

         15  anything. This is a volunteer group that we provide

         16  services in conjunction with NYC Wireless, who

         17  predates us in providing wireless access. Our

         18  students do the work with the technical guidance

         19  with NYC Wireless. In some cases we have provided

         20  equipment, in some cases, if it's a business, the

         21  business provides the broadband access, and possibly

         22  a router and our students do the work.

         23                 MR. RASIEJ: Are there any regulations

         24  or zoning rules. If you were made Mayor of New York

         25  with absolute power for a week, you could change all
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          2  the rules as you wanted to and you just wanted to

          3  make your students' task easier so they could go out

          4  and wire more of the City, what would you do?

          5                 MR. McMULLEN: I would like to see

          6  some education from the City. Very often restaurants

          7  or other places don't recognize what this can give

          8  to them, so I would like to see some publicity.

          9                 I would also like to see the overall

         10  policy of the City of promoting this NYC Wireless

         11  has been doing a tremendous job in doing the

         12  publicity and in pushing it, but the word could get

         13  out much further, particularly in the outer

         14  boroughs.

         15                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much,

         16  Mr. Axelbank and Professor McMullen.

         17                 MR. McMULLEN: Thank you.

         18                 DEAN BIRDSELL: We have been joined by

         19  the honorable James Sanders, Council Member from

         20  Queens, a member of the Committee on Technology in

         21  Government.

         22                 I would now like to ask Stuart Reid

         23  to come up.

         24                 MR. REID: Good morning. My name is

         25  Stuart Reid. I'm the Co-Chairman of Urban
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          2  Communications Transport, and New York City-based

          3  broadband franchisee.

          4                 I'd like to thank honorable Gale

          5  Brewer, and her staff, as well as Adolfo Carrion,

          6  for assembling this affair this morning on critical

          7  and important issues that we believe our government

          8  has a role in, and we're delighted to see government

          9  taking an active participation in advocating for

         10  affordable broadband for all New York City

         11  residents.

         12                 Just kind of a brief background. My

         13  company is about 13 years old. We are one of about

         14  17 broadband franchisees from Wright Bruce

         15  (phonetic) here in the New York City that gives us

         16  the right to run distribution networks in the City.

         17  Among those 17, I believe we are the only one that

         18  focuses on the residential market. We believe that

         19  the last mile connectivity to folks' homes is a

         20  critical, critical necessity in the 21st Century. We

         21  heard from the Borough President about the economic

         22  disparities, the opportunity disparities. Well, our

         23  company believes that our children should not have

         24  to stand on line to go on-line, and right now that's

         25  something that many of them have to do in schools.
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          2  They have to take a ticket. They have to wait for 20

          3  minutes, 30 minutes of use on a computer to go on

          4  line.

          5                 So, one of the things that we have

          6  done is that we have partnered with SoBRO, and under

          7  the leadership of Phil Morral (phonetic), the CEO of

          8  SoBRO, we were able to participate in a Smart

          9  building development in Diego Beekman Houses in the

         10  South Bronx. And what that initiative did was a

         11  number of things. One, it gave free Internet access

         12  to some 1,200 families. In addition to that, it gave

         13  computers free of charge to the tenants. Per

         14  Scholas, a Bronx-based computer refurbisher, helped

         15  participate in that effort.

         16                 And the third and probably the most

         17  critical component of the program, I think, is

         18  classes. Families were required to take a three-hour

         19  class in computer and Internet technology in order

         20  to qualify for their free Internet access and for

         21  their free computers.

         22                 And what we found, myself and my

         23  partner, Doug Craig (phonetic), we actually

         24  participated probably in 100 classes over the course

         25  of some 18 months at Diego Beekman, sitting there
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          2  with the families, the heads of households,

          3  sometimes the kids came down with the head of

          4  household, but for the most part, talking about

          5  middle-age women, for the most part, that did not

          6  have a lot of experience, some of them had no

          7  experience on computers.

          8                 So, though it's critically important

          9  to bring the broadband connectivity to the home,

         10  it's just as important to provide educational

         11  training - what do I do with it? How do I use it?

         12  How do I use the Internet to improve my quality of

         13  life to empower myself and my family? So, that's one

         14  of the, I think, most important components of what

         15  we've been able to do with the help of Phil Morral

         16  at SoBRO in our Smart building initiative.

         17                 We have since put together something

         18  that we've called "The Digital Divide Partnership,"

         19  which we're pulling together a coalition of

         20  concerned citizens, of private corporations and

         21  government as well, to help us replicate what was

         22  done at Diego Beekman throughout the City. We think

         23  it's an important, important initiative, and I

         24  invite all interested parties here, including

         25  members of the panel to join us in that effort.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

          4                 Are there questions for Mr. Reid?

          5                 Thank you, sir.

          6                 MR. REID: Thank you.

          7                 DEAN BIRDSELL: A number of witnesses

          8  have said how important broadband access is to

          9  students. We have several students here today who

         10  can speak directly to that issue.

         11                 I would like to ask the first two

         12  students to come up together. They are both from

         13  Brandeis High School, Mauricio Knolls and Jotain

         14  Ujoa.

         15                 MR. KNOLLS: Thank you. My name is

         16  Mauricio Knolls. I am from Brandeis High School. I

         17  am a part of the Mouse Squad (phonetic) over there.

         18  I am thankful for being able to be here. I feel that

         19  broadband connection should be available for New

         20  York City schools in areas, because many students in

         21  our area don't even have computers. So, those who do

         22  have it, I feel they should be able to use the

         23  Internet for school work and other reasons when they

         24  need it.

         25                 MR. UJOA: Yes, hi. My name is Jotain
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          2  Ujoa. I'm also a student at Brandeis. I attend a

          3  digital wireless media club, and I also think all

          4  the students should be able to go onto the Internet

          5  to be able to communicate with other people,

          6  families, and be able to do their homework and be

          7  able to stay awake. Because sometimes students fall

          8  asleep in classrooms and don't have no motivation,

          9  and some of the teachers even try to help and now

         10  they have to make appointments, and most of the time

         11  they don't even have the tools that are needed to be

         12  able to do their own work or check mail their

         13  families or friends have sent them. So, that's all I

         14  have to say.

         15                 DEAN BRANDEIS: Are there questions

         16  for Jo or Mauricio?

         17                 MR. RASIEJ: Hi, guys. Nice to see you

         18  here. You say you're from the MOUSE Squad? So, I

         19  have a question for you. If you were to pick a

         20  number and make a guess on the average student in

         21  your school, how much time in the course of a week,

         22  one week, do you think that they have total complete

         23  access to the Internet? If you were just to pick a

         24  number?

         25                 MR. UJOA: Well, it all depends on
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          2  what class they have, and their teachers must

          3  reserve it. So, depending on that, I would say maybe

          4  for the week, maybe like, because each class is 45

          5  minutes, so maybe three times a week they would have

          6  access or something like that. So, an hour and a

          7  half, two hours a week.

          8                 MR. RASIEJ: So, would you agree that

          9  having students only accessing the Internet only two

         10  hours a week is a big problem?

         11                 MR. UJOA: Yes, I believe it is,

         12  because we should be able to be accessing it

         13  whenever we can because we have this generation, and

         14  that's what we're used to, and we're more

         15  comfortable using technology that way.

         16                 MR. RASIEJ: And do you have any

         17  thoughts on why it's so difficult to get students

         18  more access?

         19                 MR. UJOA: Well, I don't even know how

         20  it works in school systems and stuff like that, but

         21  I would say it's because of money problems, stuff

         22  like that, that we don't have enough money to be

         23  able to put more wireless around the school and have

         24  more computers accessible for students to use.

         25                 MR. RASIEJ: This is my last question.
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          2  So, if the cost of actually going on line, the cost

          3  that we pay to get Internet access, was less, do you

          4  think that that money might be used and could help

          5  getting more students on line?

          6                 MR. UJOA: Yes, I believe so.

          7                 MR. RASIEJ: Thank you very much.

          8                 MR. UJOA: Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would like

         10  to ask either one of your what percentage do you

         11  estimate of your classmates have computers at home?

         12  First of all, have computers? And then I'll ask how

         13  many have Internet access? Do you think almost

         14  everybody has a computer, or not that many?

         15                 MR. UJOA: Well, I would guess like

         16  about 45 percent of each class of students might own

         17  a computer in their homes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And are they

         19  hooked up to the Internet? Do they have Internet

         20  access with those computers for the most part?

         21                 MR. UJOA: Yes. I would say like 44

         22  percent of them, and then the rest, they just have

         23  low incomes and their parents are not able to be

         24  able to be able to hook the Internet in their homes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So you only
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          2  think about half the students have access to the

          3  computer? You said 45 percent?

          4                 MR. UJOA: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: About half.

          6                 Do you think it would be worthwhile

          7  for the City to provide each student with a laptop?

          8                 MR. UJOA: Well, it would help them

          9  more be able to be able to do their work faster,

         10  because usually in classrooms we do it with pencils

         11  and most kids our age, that are going to be our age,

         12  they are able to move their fingers faster than just

         13  writing. Sometimes most of them just stop writing

         14  and don't get all the information that they need and

         15  they just drop.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I know that

         17  we do have many schools, a number of schools that

         18  give students laptops. That might be something that

         19  ought to be considered, that any student who,

         20  especially a student who can't afford it, could be

         21  given a laptop. These days they're not that

         22  expensive.

         23                 DEAN BIRDSELL: I wonder if you can

         24  tell me how important it is to you and to your

         25  classmates to have access to the Internet in
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          2  libraries in your neighborhoods?

          3                 MR. UJOA: Yes. I try to go at least

          4  once a week, because there are a lot of kids, and

          5  many schools, and those students don't have Internet

          6  access in their homes, so they all go and get

          7  crowded up in the libraries, and by the time they

          8  put in their library card code, somebody is taking

          9  at least 45 to 30 something minutes, and usually the

         10  library that opened during non-school and school

         11  hours, so by the time everybody comes out, sometimes

         12  at 2:45, 3:30, people who has taken that time that

         13  they could have been taking doing their homework or

         14  enjoying the time that they had on their computer.

         15                 DEAN BIRDSELL: So, it would help if

         16  you could access better library hours and more

         17  computers in those libraries?

         18                 MR. UJOA: Yes.

         19                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

         20                 Other questions?

         21                 MR. PARISER: Hi. Do either of you own

         22  your own computer?

         23                 MR. UJOA: Right now at this moment I

         24  own a computer but the Internet access is dropped

         25  also because of the low-income in my house. There is
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          2  a lot of bills and stuff like that.

          3                 MR. PARISER: So you don't have

          4  access.

          5                 MR. KNOLLS: I have a computer and I

          6  have access.

          7                 MR. PARISER: You have access?

          8                 MR. KNOLLS: Yes.

          9                 MR. PARISER: And on a typical week,

         10  how many hours do you put in on-line?

         11                 MR. KNOLLS: Well, since I do do MOUSE

         12  work, in my high school I get home around 6:30

         13  maybe. So, from like seven to nine I'm working on

         14  it, doing homework and stuff like that. So, two

         15  hours times five days a week would be time out.

         16                 MR. PARISER: I'm sorry, two hours?

         17                 MR. KNOLLS: Two hours, five days a

         18  week would be ten hours, yes.

         19                 MR. PARISER: And what are you

         20  basically using it for? Break down those two hours.

         21                 MR. KNOLLS: Well, any problems or

         22  questions I don't know, like any questions I had on

         23  problems, I would go on line to find the answers, or

         24  I would go to the school-based websites where the

         25  teachers post class work for the day, and I would
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          2  review it and then I leave or ask the questions.

          3                 MR. PARISER: And is it a high speed

          4  access?

          5                 MR. KNOLLS: Yes.

          6                 MR. PARISER: Thank you.

          7                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: If you don't mind,

          8  do you know how much you pay for that access? Do you

          9  know how much your family pays for that access?

         10                 MR. KNOLLS: Well, we got the three

         11  and one choice, so it's $30 for the Internet, 30 for

         12  the phone and 30 for the cable, so it's 30 a month.

         13                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: And if that was

         14  lower would you have more computers in your home?

         15  Would you buy a different computer?

         16                 MR. KNOLLS: I don't think it affects

         17  us in my family. It doesn't really affect that. It

         18  doesn't affect really buying another computer.

         19                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Could you just

         20  offer a comment about whether you think it would

         21  affect your friends' families if they were able to

         22  get on line?

         23                 MR. KNOLLS: I would think so, yes,

         24  because most of our friends, most of my friends,

         25  their families don't have enough income to be able
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          2  to buy and maintain the Internet in their house.

          3                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 MR. DUVDEVANI: In fact, that was

          6  going to be my question. Your friends, do you feel

          7  their not being able to pay for the access is a

          8  factor why they don't have services?

          9                 MR. UJOA:  Yes. I would say yes,

         10  because since the prices now in society, they are

         11  all rising, so actually like more money out of their

         12  pockets, so they have to drop some of their stuff so

         13  they can pay for stuff that they really need, and

         14  most of it goes down on technology, because since

         15  the older generation is not involved a lot with

         16  technology, they wouldn't, like, think it's really

         17  necessary. They all go to the library and get a book

         18  and just start reading.

         19                 MR. DUVDEVANI: Now, in your family,

         20  you have a computer, who else uses a computer at

         21  home? Your parents use the computer also?

         22                 MR. UJOA: When we used to have the

         23  Internet connection, my father would ask me or one

         24  of my brothers or sisters to help him learn how to

         25  use the search engines so he could be able to search
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          2  for new jobs, or anything that he might need, to

          3  interest him in something.

          4                 MR. DUVDEVANI: Thank you.

          5                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much,

          6  gentlemen. Truly wonderful things happen at Brandeis

          7  High.

          8                 I would now like to move to the

          9  middle school range. Miguel Conde', from New

         10  Beginnings Middle School.

         11                 MR. CONDE: Hello. My name is Miguel

         12  Conde. I come from the Bronx, the New Beginnings in

         13  SoBRO, and I agree with ya. And I say I agree with

         14  ya. And I say Internet is an important tool because

         15  some people look for jobs, and it's cheaper like

         16  what they get, like, on E-bay and stuff like that,

         17  so Internet really helps people and is an important

         18  tool.

         19                 A lot of kids go to the libraries, it

         20  gets packed really fast. A lot of kids in my school,

         21  it's like 50 kids in my school and like ten actually

         22  got computers, ten at home, and it's a high income

         23  that comes to your house, like a lot of bills, so

         24  parents don't want to get Internet for their kids,

         25  and it will really help if Internet is free because
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          2  it's a lot of use. Kids do projects. We work on the

          3  Executive Branch, and it's a lot of help and it's

          4  useful. So, any questions?

          5                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Questions for Miguel?

          6                 Thanks very much.

          7                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Just one question. I'm

          8  sure at one point in your life you didn't have any

          9  Internet access. So, I'm wondering, you think you

         10  would be able to measure in any way from the moment

         11  that you are able to have that Internet access, how

         12  much I guess your knowledge has grown about, you

         13  know, whether it's educational topic or whatever,

         14  you feel like there's been an increase in knowledge

         15  from you being able to have that access?

         16                 MR. CONDE: Yes, it really increases.

         17  And the Internet, it tells you a lot more about,

         18  let's say if we studied about the three branches,

         19  the Legislative, the Executive and the Judicial,

         20  well, it's a lot of help and it gives you a lot of

         21  information, and it stays in your head and stuff

         22  like that.

         23                 Because when you go to the library,

         24  you won't see, like it won't tell you a lot of

         25  history stuff in books. The Internet will definitely
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          2  tell you a lot of stuff.

          3                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: One more question

          4  for you.

          5                 You said about ten students out of

          6  about 50 have computers. Do the other students feel

          7  like the kids with computers have an advantage, and

          8  then the kids who don't have computers are more

          9  likely to drop out, and the kids who do have

         10  computers have sort of an edge?

         11                 MR. CONDE: Well, yeah, because some

         12  of them, they get their project done way before us.

         13  Us, we got to wait a long time. Some of us even fell

         14  because we don't got computers, and libraries are so

         15  far from our houses and stuff like that.

         16                 MR. DUVDEVANI: What do you think

         17  would be a good place for you and your friends, if

         18  you don't have computers, to go to have access? The

         19  library, or any other place that young people would

         20  like to go?

         21                 MR. CONDE: Well, in my school we need

         22  more laptops, because it's like, laptops for like 50

         23  kids, and not all of us get to use them.

         24                 MR. DUVDEVANI: But outside the

         25  school, is there any place that you think kids would
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          2  be comfortable in going to have access to computer,

          3  or have access to the Internet?

          4                 MR. CONDE: We only have the library,

          5  no place else. I wish we did have Internet.

          6                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Many thanks to Miguel

          7  and many thanks to New Beginnings Middle School.

          8                 MR. CONDE: All right. Thank you.

          9                 DEAN BIRDSELL: We'd like to hear from

         10  one more educator from the BRONX before returning to

         11  our speaking order, and I'd like to call to the

         12  podium Andrew Gallagher from the Bronx Writing

         13  Academy.

         14                 MR. GALLAGHER: Good morning. My name

         15  is Andrew Gallagher, and I am an instructional

         16  technology coach with the Bronx Writing Academy.

         17  Thank you very much for the opportunity to speak

         18  with you today.

         19                 Equitable access to the world wide

         20  web and the wealth of information available to the

         21  Internet is, without doubt, one of the single, most

         22  significant issues, facing school systems today.

         23                 Nowhere is it more apparent than in

         24  under-served, under-privileged schools, such as the

         25  Bronx Writing Academy. Eighty percent of students
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          2  receive free or reduced school lunch, and the

          3  implications of this extend beyond the school into

          4  their home environments. Interestingly, only 20

          5  percent of our students indicate they have home

          6  access to a computer and the Internet.

          7                 We have made and continue to make

          8  significant strides in terms of technology

          9  integration within our school, but there remains a

         10  great deal to achieve still.

         11                 In order to continue in the same

         12  vein, and provide the very best educational

         13  resources, it is absolutely necessary for our

         14  students and faculty to have access to reliable,

         15  high speed Internet connections.

         16                 Within each classroom at any point of

         17  the instructional day, there is a genuine concern

         18  from our teachers that their ideas and resources

         19  will not be realized, because the infrastructure of

         20  our schools is so poor.

         21                 Thirty students accessing the same

         22  website at the same time is simply not possible most

         23  days.

         24                 Current and future generations

         25  require relevant 21st Century skills in ICT,
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          2  Information Communication Technology. In order to

          3  enter a workforce increasingly driven by technology,

          4  the Internet, world wide web, and technology tools

          5  will continue to play a vital role in developing

          6  social skills and very real understandings of the

          7  world beyond the Bronx, New York and the USA.

          8                 To deny students access to reliable

          9  Internet connections both in school and their home

         10  environments, is to deny opportunities to develop

         11  those skills necessary to succeed in any number of

         12  professions.

         13                 The digital divide continues to

         14  dominate the lives of students throughout the Bronx.

         15  No longer is this divide solely centered on

         16  purchasing equipment. There is now the added issue

         17  of access to the vast array of on-line resources,

         18  communication tools, interactive websites, and

         19  alternate tools available by the Internet. As

         20  educators, policy makers, budget controllers and

         21  concerned citizens of New York City, we must support

         22  the notion that our student communities need to work

         23  in environments where high speed, reliable internet

         24  access is viewed as a truly vital element in

         25  educational development.
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          2                 Thank you, again, for your time. Any

          3  questions?

          4                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you.

          5                 Questions for Mr. Gallagher?

          6                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Thank you very

          7  much. If you could provide your students with

          8  access, not only in the school, in an environment

          9  where they would be able to get on line at home and

         10  be able to access either your lesson plans or other

         11  lesson plans and resources, would it have a

         12  precipitous affect on your ability to be a teacher,

         13  an effective teacher?

         14                 MR. GALLAGHER: Yes, most teachers in

         15  our school are very tech savvy and they want the

         16  students to access what they've done in class at

         17  home. They need that continuation, the transference

         18  of knowledge between different subject areas, and so

         19  access at home is vital. We can give them a

         20  textbook. We have no issue with giving a textbook to

         21  take home, do work with it, but we can't do the same

         22  with the Internet. We can't say research this

         23  website, go and do this activity, because 80 percent

         24  of our students don't have Internet access.

         25                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: How many students
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          2  are in your school?

          3                 MR. GALLAGHER: Nearly 600. About 580.

          4                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Would you say your

          5  school is pretty average?

          6                 MR. GALLAGHER: Yes, it's typical of

          7  the Bronx.

          8                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: I'm going to ask

          9  you to answer the question I asked the students

         10  earlier. Can you just give an estimate, on an

         11  average basis how much time a student in your school

         12  gets to spend with unfettered access, unfettered

         13  access to the Internet per week?

         14                 MR. GALLAGHER: Maximum two hours.

         15                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: And would you say

         16  as a result of that, that they are being held back

         17  significantly?

         18                 MR. GALLAGHER: Absolutely. Totally.

         19                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: One last question.

         20  Has your principal or anybody above you in your

         21  structure of your school brought this issue up to

         22  any of the leadership of the New York City public

         23  school system?

         24                 MR. GALLAGHER: We continually call in

         25  issues to the help desk.
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          2                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: And what is the

          3  response to your request?

          4                 MR. GALLAGHER: With the development

          5  of empowerment schools, it's now very much an issue

          6  of who is dealing for what, who is responsible for

          7  what. We still have some issues to iron out with

          8  that and we don't quite know who is responsible for

          9  the building infrastructure and who is responsible

         10  for the Internet infrastructure. So, it becomes a

         11  very long process to find out who is actually going

         12  to fix things, and they will come and fix it, two

         13  weeks later it's down again.

         14                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: You're talking

         15  about the infrastructure of the school itself?

         16                 MR. GALLAGHER: The Internet

         17  infrastructure.

         18                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: One last question

         19  and we will move on to some of the other speakers,

         20  other questions possibly. Do you think that the cost

         21  of broadband access in the home is a significant

         22  barrier to the future success of your students?

         23                 MR. GALLAGHER: Absolutely. Most of

         24  our students simply cannot afford to get on line

         25  through high speed. Some through dial-up, it's too
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          2  slow, it's not reliable. Broadband is pretty much

          3  out of their reach.

          4                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much,

          7  Mr. Gallagher.

          8                 I'd like to call the next two

          9  speakers. We'll hear first from Jonathan Evans, from

         10  the Wireless Harlem Initiative. If Timothy Lance

         11  could also come and sit down in front, President and

         12  Chair of NYSERNet.

         13                 Jonathan Evans.

         14                 MR. EVANS: Good morning, panel. My

         15  name is Jonathan Evans. I'm from Wireless Harlem.

         16  You have to realize I'm a little nervous. I was a

         17  participant in Professor McMullin's class in the

         18  wireless program and actually got very excited about

         19  it because it was an opportunity to bring some of

         20  the technology that was happening on demand, so it

         21  gave us an opportunity to meet with some people in

         22  our community and actually understand the digital

         23  divide that was taking place in our community. I

         24  live in Harlem, and, of course, the school was in

         25  the Bronx, and we had an opportunity to really go
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          2  down to business owners and say, hey, there's an

          3  opportunity to give wireless access to your

          4  community. And it was interesting because it was an

          5  education curb going on. A lot of people were like,

          6  well, how is this going to affect my business? So,

          7  as a student it was interesting because we wanted to

          8  understand the business owner's needs to reflect on

          9  the idea what New York City Wireless is trying to do

         10  in providing this broadband access to the community

         11  and then make him understand the benefits to his

         12  business, to the community. And while we were doing

         13  this, we actually started talking to different small

         14  businesses in Harlem and find out it's an education

         15  gap, just for them, to find out what resources are

         16  available, to find out how they can use these

         17  resources. So, you know, we were a student, and we

         18  were kind of excited, like, wow, the things that

         19  we're learning, we're able to give back to the

         20  community. But it became a point that when we

         21  started talking to, not only the small business, but

         22  people that, students, young adults, we start to see

         23  that it's almost the segment approach to how the

         24  knowledge trickles down, and we found that people

         25  that are aware, you know, the Verizon, the marketing
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          2  opportunity that has taken place versus the real

          3  world need, I think what happens is people watch

          4  television and they're seeing these phrases, these

          5  high-speed wireless initiatives, and they're like,

          6  well, what does all this mean? And I think it's

          7  promising to see it's starting on the student level,

          8  but I think there's a gap that's missing because

          9  they don't have access to the information.

         10                 So, I think what we were doing, along

         11  with Professor McMullin, was going out there and

         12  helping that education take place. Working with New

         13  York City -- excuse me -- Wireless Harlem, the

         14  Initiative now is to go and find these people, speak

         15  to them so that they have a voice, similar to what

         16  we're doing here, and then trying to design content

         17  of this access and bringing it out to the public.

         18                 Any questions?

         19                 MS. STOCK: I have a question. What do

         20  you think this Committee could do to explore the

         21  issue of educating small businesses? How should we

         22  be looking at that? Or what initiatives would you

         23  recommend?

         24                 MR. EVANS: I actually think it's a

         25  thing, besides having these public forums, going to

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  the community from something that Michael Lewis and

          3  I were speaking about from the Wireless Harlem

          4  Initiative, essentially bringing it to the masses. I

          5  took today off to attend here, so, you know, we see

          6  those people that don't have the time to come to

          7  these events. Going out to them. It sounds

          8  interesting, we're developing a street team to

          9  essentially go out to areas of our community and

         10  say, hey, here's some education, you know, as

         11  opposed to it being vendor-centric, it's technology

         12  and it's really just going out and saying, hey, you

         13  guys can help us, you know, go out to the student,

         14  partner with the different organizations that are

         15  trying to do this. I think it would be very helpful.

         16                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Mr. Evans, do I

         17  understand you correctly in saying that essentially

         18  one of the problems is that people don't understand

         19  fully the benefits that broadband access can bring

         20  them, and that this is a particular problem in the

         21  small business community in Harlem; is that an

         22  accurate representation?

         23                 MR. EVANS: It's very accurate,

         24  because I live about ten blocks from 125th Street,

         25  there was a lot of dynamic changes taking place in
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          2  the community, unfortunately, the small business

          3  owners that are affected by these changes, they

          4  don't have access to the information, and know about

          5  how to get access. I mean, this is wonderful,

          6  because a lot of you members of the panel are trying

          7  to start something, but it has to be more impact but

          8  going to the source, going to the students, going to

          9  the college. We were blessed that New York City

         10  Wireless came to our school, and I just thought it

         11  was interesting, because I thought, wow, we're

         12  mainly a minority school, but the community is mixed

         13  up with people that have different needs. And if you

         14  can understand what those needs are, in terms of a

         15  user as opposed to, you know, let's just ram the

         16  technology, it would have to be a more -- you know,

         17  when government gets involved, that's a wonderful

         18  thing, but how that information is displaced to us

         19  in the community is important. We can see, you know,

         20  there were representations from the communities, but

         21  this needs to take place not only on the school, but

         22  I'm sure you need to take a road show and then go

         23  actually to the people, call for more business, call

         24  some of the students, call some of the teachers, and

         25  then find out the true impact.
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          2                 I was lucky because at one time,

          3  guys, I worked for Globics. Globics laid all this

          4  fiber -- excuse me, I'm sorry -- Global Crossing

          5  laid all this dark fiber, so by saying that the

          6  bandwidth opportunities are not here, it's not true.

          7  We have to figure out how to get inexpensive

          8  Internet access to the people so that they can take

          9  advantage and be competitive with what's going on in

         10  the world.

         11                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you for coming

         12  today. You've raised an interesting point that I

         13  think all of us need to focus on, and thank you for

         14  being the first person to use the word "content."

         15  And I'm not sure what's the chicken and what's the

         16  egg here, but I have a question and then a perfect

         17  comment and a question, because I think as we focus

         18  on the why, why is this important, it gets us to

         19  ultimately making it happen, and do you have

         20  specific examples of as you go out in your community

         21  and begin to look at businesses and individuals, in

         22  terms of what they specifically see as enhancements

         23  to their businesses and ultimately how you've helped

         24  them achieve that?

         25                 MR. EVANS: Well, I think one of the
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          2  first things is, like you said, education. The word

          3  content. Content is actually in type of medium that

          4  you can serve to your user that has a value to them.

          5  And you know, a lot of times you get people talking

          6  about, well, I want to protect, I don't want to have

          7  my children have access to this content. Well, then,

          8  you know, the Internet is so beautiful that you can

          9  put restrictions on that, but you want to have

         10  choices, and I think, you know, once you can realize

         11  what these choices are, and then teach those users

         12  how the content applies to them. We have Java's

         13  Brewin, which is one of our clients, that we worked

         14  with. It was really an education thing. We said,

         15  hey, you know, we can put this content together to

         16  show your business but also reach out to the

         17  community. So, it's not just unique to Java's Brewin

         18  to be able to attract more people into their

         19  business, the community takes advantage of this

         20  wireless, and they can jump on this available

         21  wireless access point, and still design content for

         22  the business owner, and also for the community. And

         23  that's where we were kind of lucky and blessed that

         24  we were able to show that, hey, this can work for

         25  your business needs, and also for your community
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          2  needs.

          3                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you.

          4                 Just one more comment. For all the

          5  educators and the students that are still here,

          6  there's a wonderful not-for-profit that we're active

          7  in at 55 Broad Street, the Digital Club House, and

          8  if your students are interested in ultimately

          9  learning how to create content through the medium of

         10  digital story telling, it's a fabulous group. They

         11  take students. The most recent project is they took

         12  kids, they took World War II vets, they put them

         13  together, studying ultimately World War II and

         14  American history, and those kids created three- to

         15  five-minute movies about these vets and told their

         16  story. So, you created this connection between

         17  generations and ultimately taught these kids how to

         18  be little Spielbergs. It was the Digital Club House.

         19                 MR. SZARFARC: A quick question for

         20  you. I serve on the Board of the Manhattan Chamber

         21  of Commerce, talk to a lot of small business owners,

         22  and the feedback I get from them is that, gee, we

         23  are so busy trying to make a go of our business that

         24  we realize there are wonderful benefits to the

         25  Internet, whether it's purchasing or whether it's
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          2  processing our orders, but we still don't have the

          3  time. Is that consistent with the feedback and the

          4  conversations that you've had in your community with

          5  small business owners?

          6                 MR. EVANS: A case in point, most of

          7  your businesses, they don't want to have to worry

          8  about, you know, okay, now I have the Internet and

          9  now these other sides to it, but we teach our

         10  clients, there's choices. So, when you have choices

         11  here, it opens up a brand new can of worms. But I'd

         12  rather be able to say, you know, I have a choice

         13  between A, B and C, and then dealing with those

         14  problems and ramifications that are associated with

         15  a minor, and to say, hey, my choice is A or B.

         16                 So, what we did is, we tried to work

         17  with that small business owner's schedule. As

         18  students we were going there and saying, okay, you

         19  tell us what time we can meet, after your business

         20  closes. We were calling him, and I think once we

         21  showed we were interested, not only in doing the

         22  project for the class, but we were truly interested

         23  in his business needs, and how to educate him based

         24  on his schedule available.

         25                 You can see I am excited by it
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          2  because it was something that, we're like wow, and

          3  then there's a learning curve involved because

          4  you're actually teaching somebody and then you're

          5  going in and saying, hey, I'm involved in changing

          6  my community. And I think that's the most exciting

          7  part of going and saying, yeah, you can see how

          8  these little opportunities have a little ripple

          9  effect with respect to my community.

         10                 MR. SZARFARC: So, essentially what

         11  you're doing is, you're going to small businesses,

         12  retailers, I'm assume basically, and they're

         13  creating and sponsoring hot spots.

         14                 MR. EVANS: Exactly.

         15                 MR. SZARFARC: And when the customer

         16  comes to that hot spot, there is probably a pop-up

         17  page that advertises the company, the beginning, and

         18  the company gets the benefit of advertising for

         19  relatively low cost. How far does it broadcast?

         20                 MR. EVANS: It actually is in their

         21  neighborhood. So, this Java's Brewin is right by

         22  City College. It is 139th and Amsterdam. The beauty

         23  of it is those small offices and small buildings in

         24  the area, they can actually ride bandwidth they can

         25  use some of the wireless that's available from that
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          2  coffee shop. So, what's unique about it is, anybody

          3  in that broadcast range, if they want to log in,

          4  they log in, they're seeing his advertisement, and

          5  plus, they're getting the benefits of accessing the

          6  Internet.

          7                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: I have an

          8  anecdotal question:  If the employee pool that was

          9  available to the small business owners were actually

         10  on-line themselves and educated about the potential

         11  of technology that those businesses would be better

         12  served because they'd have people to rely on that

         13  would help them?

         14                 MR. EVANS: You know, I worked for a

         15  company that was essentially a database, they

         16  published information. Most small businesses, they

         17  want to be able to compete with competition, the big

         18  boys out there. I honestly feel that once you're

         19  saying, hey, there's the Internet, how can you teach

         20  them how to use this? I think what we're trying to

         21  do is very interesting. It's an education thing and

         22  then we're trying to fill a niche. The education

         23  part comes in teaching, hey, this is how you protect

         24  yourself.

         25                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Now, I'm asking
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          2  very specifically. I understand what you do, and you

          3  do great work and very important. I'm just trying to

          4  ask you to comment on if the employees that are

          5  available to the businesses that you're helping now,

          6  don't have access to the Internet themselves, then

          7  for the employer to be able to then find people,

          8  because you can teach them, but they also need to

          9  find people who can then work on what you teach

         10  them.

         11                 MR. EVANS: Unfortunately, we haven't

         12  really found those people yet. We're seeking, and in

         13  this case with the wireless, New York City Wireless,

         14  of course the Monroe Project, we went out to the

         15  businesses, we said, okay, this is what we're going

         16  to be able to do for you.

         17                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: I understand. So,

         18  if you're saying you haven't been able to find those

         19  people, I'm just asking you to voice your opinion,

         20  do you think that one of the reasons why you haven't

         21  been able to find those people was because those

         22  people themselves don't exist in an environment in a

         23  City that doesn't allow them to get on line, learn

         24  these skills? Or do you think that those employees

         25  actually exist, and are just not available, just
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          2  don't know about the job opportunities for your --

          3                 MR. EVANS: They're not aware.

          4                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: They're not aware.

          5  But you think they exist?

          6                 MR. EVANS: Those opportunities?

          7                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: There is an

          8  employee pool in New York of people who have

          9  computer skills that are more than willing to go

         10  work at those businesses --

         11                 MR. EVANS: Of course.

         12                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: And they have

         13  computer skills?

         14                 MR. EVANS: Yes.

         15                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: And those people

         16  exist, and do you have any explanation as to why

         17  they're not connected to those businesses, why we're

         18  not finding those people?

         19                 MR. EVANS: Again, I think it's the

         20  programs that get people excited to go out there.

         21  I'm volunteering my time. We're not getting paid. We

         22  first thought it would be a great idea to do a

         23  business. It actually became something like, hey,

         24  this is an initiative that needs to take place. So

         25  there are people that have the skills set that say,
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          2  hey, we want to donate our time, you know, but in

          3  terms of having most people seek us out? No, we

          4  haven't had the client base.

          5                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much,

          8  Mr. Evans.

          9                 Timothy Lance, and if I could ask

         10  also the next person who will be testifying, Kayza

         11  Kleinman, to come and join us in the front row,

         12  you'll be up next.

         13                 Mr. Lance.

         14                 MR. LANCE: Good morning. And thank

         15  you, Councilman Brewer and Broadband Advisory

         16  Committee members, for the opportunity to speak with

         17  you on New York City's broadband opportunities. I'm

         18  Tim Lance, Chair of NYSERNet, New York State

         19  Education Research Network consortium, which for 20

         20  years has been providing advanced networks for our

         21  community.

         22                 NYSERNet admires the City's careful

         23  and thoughtful approach to crafting Citywide

         24  broadband strategy. Broadband has become a very

         25  popular buzz word and it's attempting to rush to a
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          2  solution, as many cities have done with great

          3  publicity and not a lot of content. New York City's

          4  measured approach will produce results that are more

          5  fundamental and valuable to every citizen.

          6                 But we need to be careful when using

          7  the term "broadband" as it is not well defined. The

          8  first two pages on the left of your packet

          9  graphically represent various bandwidths, each of

         10  which might be asserted to representative broadband.

         11  The FCC's official definition of 284 kilobits per

         12  second would be a tiny dot on the first page.

         13                 Yet, clearly that is not enough for

         14  many applications the City might want to make

         15  available. As a comparison, NYSERNet has deployed an

         16  optical network on two hair-size strands of glass

         17  from New York City to Buffalo. It's total carrying

         18  capacity of 320 gigabits per second is 320 times the

         19  capacity of the largest circle on the first page,

         20  and is depicted on the second page. So, we must

         21  always think of broadband as a continuum, a moving

         22  target, and the City's strategy should be careful to

         23  incorporate the possibility of growth in capacity in

         24  any area when feasible and affordable.

         25                 Let me spend just a moment to
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          2  describe the networking initiatives of the NYSERNet

          3  community. Even before we deployed the statewide

          4  network, working Lexent Metro Connect we deployed

          5  fiber in Manhattan, later extended into the Bronx,

          6  alas not to here yet, and serving the research,

          7  education and medical communities.

          8                 I have here a sample of the fiber

          9  pulled in Manhattan. It's an information transport

         10  tool of essentially infinite capacity.

         11                 This particular cable has 864 strands

         12  of glass, broken into sub-bundles, each of those

         13  into ribbons of a dozen fibers. If you were to take

         14  the entire population of the United States and put

         15  them on the two coasts, all of those calls could be

         16  handled uncompressed with room to spare on one of

         17  those ribbons. So, only our imagination is an

         18  obstacle to create abuse of the network.

         19                 A map of the existing NYSERNet New

         20  York City fiber is in your packets on, again on the

         21  left.

         22                 When we deployed this fiber, we ran

         23  it through three major carrier facilities, with our

         24  main collocation site in 32 Avenue of the Americas,

         25  once the long lines building of AT&T. Mr. Gilbert is
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          2  my landlord. Every major national research network

          3  has a presence in our space, and more than 50

          4  international research networks are there. A diagram

          5  of the layout of our space is included in your

          6  packets.

          7                 Internet technology has also been

          8  critical to the community that we serve, so we are

          9  right now building a back-up facility in Syracuse,

         10  New York, so that if a data center went down, the

         11  remote facility could take over unnoticeably at the

         12  particular institution.

         13                 But we have work to do. We have to

         14  reach all the boroughs. We have to reach the rest of

         15  the Bronx. This is all work in progress.

         16                 I offer the help of the NESERNet

         17  community as the Broadband Advisory Committee plots

         18  a course for the City. For two decades the R&E

         19  community has deployed networks to meet the

         20  specialized needs of its members, always significant

         21  jumps ahead in capability. Beyond that, we have been

         22  leaders in uses of the network, in building of

         23  content, in experience that is easily shared with a

         24  broader community and, ideally, a motivator for

         25  greater broadband deployment and use.
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          2                 I spent yesterday afternoon with

          3  Ellis Rubinstein, the President of the New York

          4  Academy of Sciences who is recrafting that

          5  organization into a crucible for percolation of

          6  extraordinary ideas and keeping them here and having

          7  the network be some of the glue. There is no reason

          8  that that can't extend to every citizen in New York

          9  City and across the State.

         10                 I thank you, again, for the

         11  opportunity to speak on these issues. I am joined

         12  today with Sharon Akkoul of NYSERNet. We would be

         13  happy to answer any questions.

         14                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Questions for Mr.

         15  Lance?

         16                 MR. DUVDEVANI: As a provider, can you

         17  tell us a little bit about the infrastructure

         18  available in the Bronx, the landscape? Is there

         19  enough available in the Bronx, in terms of large

         20  band infrastructure, and from which providers?

         21                 MR. LANCE: Two of your panelists can

         22  answer that better than I can. The map that I gave

         23  you of the infrastructure that we deployed

         24  specifically for the R&E community, and we're

         25  reached Fordham. This is as far as we've gone in the
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          2  Bronx. We've got a ring that we'd like to close and

          3  we haven't done that yet. We'd like to be here in

          4  this institution. And there are assets available

          5  from Verizon, from others, we use them when it's

          6  areas where we don't have our own transport

          7  facilities on a regular basis.

          8                 But I don't have that, that's usually

          9  company confidential.

         10                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: You own and

         11  operate probably one of the most important networks

         12  from a research and development standpoint anywhere

         13  in the world, Internet 2 was built as an Internet.

         14  It wasn't cobbled together. We talked earlier and we

         15  talked about the ancient libraries of Alexandria and

         16  how your network ultimately has to be viewed as the

         17  optical equivalent of that, based upon the type of

         18  research and the level of bandwidth that is flowing

         19  through your network. And you should be

         20  congratulated for creating that. But as we sit here

         21  today, what is the biggest obstacle that you see of

         22  ultimately opening up that network to as many people

         23  and as many neighborhoods as possible? What do you

         24  think the biggest obstacle to that is?

         25                 MR. LANCE: It's money. You know, take
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          2  an example of Verizon's files. I think it's a gutsy,

          3  bold thing, and if they're being hit on it, it's by

          4  the analysts on Wall Street are saying you're

          5  spending money that's not going to give a profit

          6  this quarter.

          7                 I met with all of the FCC

          8  commissioners, and several of them have said that,

          9  talk to the analysts and encourage them to encourage

         10  companies to make investments in broadband.

         11                 There's a second one and it's

         12  building the capabilities within the students

         13  themselves. There's a paucity of people that are

         14  interested in science and math, the number of

         15  degrees in leisure studies, it's greater than the

         16  number of degrees in engineering, math, science,

         17  chemistry, all of them, to put together, and we need

         18  to re-ingender that spark.

         19                 I grew up during the Spotnick era,

         20  and so it was okay to be a geek. Right now I have,

         21  my math professor and I have got a program working

         22  with K through 12 math teachers in Albany,

         23  Schnectedy and Roman Catholic Diocese, in the area

         24  around Albany, and after three years we're just

         25  seeing data that's showing in the kids it's making a
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          2  difference on these critical fourth and fifth grade

          3  math tests, that the scores are starting to turn

          4  around. So, skills is one of them, and the other is

          5  just having the network available, and that's money.

          6  It's low-income houses, it's having the network in

          7  the neighborhood and then getting it from the

          8  neighborhood into the house.

          9                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Thank you.

         10                 MS. STOCK: You made this very

         11  generous offer of helping us as a Committee with

         12  your knowledge base and skills. I'm wondering if you

         13  could provide to us, or if you know of other cities,

         14  either across the country or internationally, that

         15  have reached out to the R&E community and used them

         16  to help them design something?

         17                 MR. LANCE: Well, I know of some, but

         18  not that are working the way that it was initially

         19  envisioned. And Gale has been an advocate and a fan

         20  and supporter for a long time, and encouraging this

         21  in what we're doing, it's hard going. We're doing a

         22  number of things right now with CUNY. CUNY has got

         23  campuses all over the place, and so that's sort of a

         24  natural place that the education community can reach

         25  out. We've got things that we're exploring for first
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          2  responders, for more community access, for a variety

          3  of other things like that for reaching the medical

          4  community. Hospitals that don't have access to very

          5  high speed networks, that less the case in the City,

          6  although still have not had their own fiber, can do

          7  much more matchable things than those that do not,

          8  and upstate the problem is more acute, if you're not

          9  near the thruway.

         10                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

         11                 I would now like to call to the

         12  podium Kayza Kleinman, Director of the Jewish

         13  Community Council of Greater Coney Island. And if I

         14  could also ask Joshua Breitbart to come and join us

         15  in the front row. You will be testifying next.

         16                 MS. KLEINMAN: Good morning. Let me

         17  correct that. I'm not the Director of the Jewish

         18  Community Council, I'm the Director of the

         19  Non-Profit Help Desk, which is a division of the

         20  Jewish Community Council. The Director, Imosha

         21  Weiner (phonetic) is not here today. He's in the

         22  office.

         23                 I've been the Director of the

         24  Non-Profit Help Desk for over 16 years, almost 18 by

         25  now, and we've been serving the non-profit
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          2  community, to date 700 non-profit organizations

          3  throughout the City, including quite a few in the

          4  Bronx, and before I get to the meat of my testimony,

          5  I would like to answer two questions that were

          6  raised earlier. The first is whether there are

          7  issues with actual access besides affordability just

          8  being there. And I can tell you unequivocally, yes.

          9  We have clients in the Bronx that are having major

         10  issues, getting reliable, affordable -- forget

         11  affordable, but reliable high-speed Internet access.

         12  So, I can say from first-time experience, yes, this

         13  is a very real problem. So that needs to happen.

         14                 Second thing is, as far as the

         15  question had been raised whether having a pool of

         16  employees who know something about Internet

         17  technology would enable small employers to make that

         18  movement again from experience in the non-profit

         19  community, undoubtedly organizations that have

         20  employees that are comfortable, familiar, can help

         21  move the organization much more rapidly into the

         22  information age. I've seen it happen time and again.

         23                 And the other, one other question

         24  that had been raised is in terms of access, you

         25  know, I better get to my testimony, I see I'm almost
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          2  out of time. In order to understand how important

          3  Internet access is, I'd like to throw a few facts

          4  out about the Bronx, that the Bronx people will be

          5  familiar with undoubtedly. In 2002, according to the

          6  Census Bureau's American Community Survey,

          7  approximately ten percent of all households in the

          8  Bronx were seniors living alone. Over 20 percent of

          9  the population in the Bronx have a disability. I

         10  don't have the exact number but a significant number

         11  of households in the Bronx are female headed with

         12  children under five. This is very, very significant.

         13                 Sixty-four percent of all households

         14  in the Bronx do not have access to a car, which

         15  means that depending on public transportation, is

         16  not all that ideal, and I can speak to that from

         17  firsthand experience, having traveled around the

         18  Borough, public transportation is sometimes not as

         19  available, often even when it's technically

         20  available, if you've got to climb stairs, you've got

         21  mobility, you've got a little kid in a stroller,

         22  whatever it is, it can be very, very hard to get

         23  around. Which undoubtedly is a fact for some very

         24  troubling statistics. Quote, 18 percent of all

         25  female-headed households with children under five
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          2  live under the poverty line. While 70 percent of the

          3  able-bodied, non-disabled population is employed,

          4  only 31.9 percent of disabled population is

          5  employed. Again, like I said, these numbers are

          6  coming from the American Community Survey 2002.

          7                 Broadband is one tool that can help

          8  deal with this problem, simply by dealing with the

          9  mobility issues. Fast, stable broadband means that

         10  telecommunicating can be feasible, either full-time

         11  or part-time, which means if you've got child care

         12  issues, if you've got child care issues, if you only

         13  have to find somebody once a week, instead of five

         14  days a week, makes a tremendous difference.

         15                 And you will see in my written

         16  testimony the rest of that. On an organizational

         17  basis, it also makes a tremendous difference, in

         18  terms of funding mandates. In terms of funding

         19  mandates, a lot of organizations now are required to

         20  do stuff on-line. If you don't have broadband

         21  access, you're up a creek. In terms of advocacy,

         22  research, et cetera. Just as an example, the numbers

         23  I quote you, on the Internet. Like I said, the rest

         24  of it, it's all in writing, but that's the long and

         25  short of it.
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          2                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you.

          3                 MS. KLEINMAN: Questions?

          4                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Questions for Ms.

          5  Kleinman?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Kayza, what, in

          7  terms of the non-profit communities that you work

          8  with, what are some of their number one obstacles?

          9  Is it getting information about what is out there in

         10  terms of their technology options? Is it the cost?

         11  What is the number one for the non-profits that you

         12  work with?

         13                 MS. KLEINMAN: Actually, there are

         14  three issues that I think play equal roles. One is

         15  simply the cost. Like I said, it can be very

         16  expensive to do it and do it right and do it

         17  securely. Remember that. For non-profits especially,

         18  they're also dealing with a lot of very sensitive

         19  information, which needs to be protected, so you

         20  want to get out, you want to make sure that

         21  undesirables don't get in.

         22                 Number two is education, in terms of

         23  knowing what is out there, what options are out

         24  there.

         25                 And number three is really the
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          2  perception, and that was really the other question I

          3  had wanted to address, the perception we don't have

          4  time, not realizing that if you actually get on line

          5  and have this, you actually save time, at the end of

          6  the day you wind up saving an enormous amount of

          7  time because there is so much you can do on-line,

          8  rather than having to run here, run there, get on

          9  the phone, play telephone tag, et cetera.

         10                 So, I think those three things are

         11  actually pretty much equal, and there are major,

         12  major issues.

         13                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

         14                 I'd like to call to the podium Joshua

         15  Breitbart.

         16                 MR. BREITBART: Thank you. Good

         17  morning. My name is Joshua Breitbart. I am the

         18  Policy Director for People's Production House.

         19  People's Production House trains middle and high

         20  school students and low-wage and immigrant workers

         21  from across the City to be radio journalists. That

         22  includes, so we do the content side, but that also

         23  includes analyzing how the media works and how

         24  people can change it.

         25                 I'm a Brooklyn kid. I'm visiting a
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          2  distant land here, and out of respect for my hosts

          3  here in the Bronx, including all those who have come

          4  out to contribute to this vital discussion, I will

          5  keep my remarks brief. I have submitted my full

          6  testimony in writing, and copies in the back.

          7                 So, I'm skipping over the part where

          8  I thank everyone who made this possible. Skipping

          9  over the part where I talk about how awesome the

         10  Internet is, or how awesome it could be if we got

         11  everyone hooked up with meaningful access. Also over

         12  the part where I recite my resume in municipal

         13  broadband in the hope that it will get you to listen

         14  to me, and go right to the chase of my

         15  recommendations for this Committee.

         16                 The most important thing that I've

         17  learned about municipal broadband, there is no

         18  cookie-cutter solution, there is no easy answer, and

         19  that the critical thing to finding the right

         20  solution is having the right process of assessing

         21  the problem and working towards a solution.

         22                 So, here are the keys, as I've come

         23  to understand, to a healthy process, one that

         24  minimizes conflicts and leads to solid results.

         25                 One is, sustain open participation
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          2  beyond this initial public hearing stage, throughout

          3  the entire process, and continuing even after a

          4  solution is implemented.

          5                 Two, is promote horizontal

          6  relationships among stakeholders, rather than hub

          7  and spoke relationships that all connect to this

          8  Committee, or to one person or one organization.

          9                 Also, three, unite stakeholders

         10  around the shared technology rather than dividing

         11  them into tiers, which a lot of times is an outcome

         12  of using wireless for connectivity.

         13                 Four would be incorporate existing

         14  human resources, including a lot of what we've heard

         15  from today, wherever possible to avoid redundancy

         16  and to build on existing relationships.

         17                 And, five, be open with whatever

         18  information you gather, publish the documents and

         19  test results and regular updates on the process on

         20  an accessible worksite, and, of course, make them

         21  readily available to people who don't have Internet

         22  access.

         23                 The fact is that the people that have

         24  the most at stake in this conversation are not

         25  people like me, white dudes with laptops and DSL
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          2  connections in their home. Not that I would mind

          3  faster speeds for lower prices, but it's really

          4  folks who have no access, or very limited access to

          5  the Internet, and People's Production House has a

          6  core of eager reporters ready to work with you to

          7  engage that constituency. So, thank you, again, to

          8  this Committee for your time and energy, and to your

          9  commitment for New York's communication future.

         10                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

         11                 Questions for Mr. Breitbart? Thank

         12  you very much, sir.

         13                 MR. BREITBART: Thank you.

         14                 DEAN BIRDSELL: I would now like to

         15  call the Editor, Dave Burstein, of DSL Prime.

         16                 MR. BURSTEIN: Hi, guys. I have to

         17  apologize because I'm a geek. I'm not a lawyer. I'm

         18  not a lobbyist, and I don't know how to talk most of

         19  the stuff people have been saying for the last hour

         20  and a half.

         21                 I have a disadvantage - I have to

         22  deal with reality. Let me start by admitting my

         23  bias. It's an enormous bias in favor of the great

         24  Internet for everybody in New York, Singapore and

         25  Paris at an affordable price.
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          2                 I was quoted out of context in the

          3  New York Times two days because I called the head of

          4  AT&T a very, very smart man. He happens to be, but

          5  that doesn't mean that AT&T, or Verizon, as they're

          6  talking now, are going to solve the problems that we

          7  want to solve that almost everybody in this room

          8  wants to solve.

          9                 Let me give you some real data.

         10  First, the broadband we have in New York City right

         11  now is lousy. That's typical of almost all the

         12  United States. I was in Paris December, it's almost

         13  embarrassing, the United States feels like an

         14  under-developed country.

         15                 They are doing what -- did Verizon

         16  leave? Is Tom Dunne here? Oh, well. I was going to

         17  say I called Larry Babio, one of his bosses, a hero

         18  at a public policy meeting, Fios (phonetic) is one

         19  of the best networks in the world, okay? They're

         20  doing that now in Paris.

         21                 Howard, I'm forgetting David's last

         22  name, the head of Cable Labs? I'm sorry, I'm

         23  forgetting his last name. I met him at a conference

         24  in Colorado about three weeks ago. We were talking

         25  about where he had just been. He was just back from
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          2  Singapore, which by the time this Committee gets

          3  around to making its recommendations, will be

          4  delivering a gigabit shared to almost every home in

          5  Singapore. The target on that is 2009.

          6                 When I talk about Paris, I'm talking

          7  about -- the beep is actually a minute early. I was

          8  told three minutes. I will hang out after the

          9  session for anybody who wants to go over this stuff.

         10  If you don't have a geek friend, I'm not saying

         11  anything that isn't known to anybody of the top 100

         12  technical people at Howard or Tom's company. Okay,

         13  this is reality out there.

         14                 In Paris, ten to 20 megabits cost 15

         15  to 25 bucks. In New York three megabits cost 30

         16  bucks from Verizon, five megabits cost 40 or 45

         17  bucks from Time Warner. I've heard a lot of people

         18  talk about affordable. I meant to look at the two

         19  guys who are going to be supplying 85 to 95 percent

         20  of the high speed Internet in New York in 2012. The

         21  wireless is not going to be able to be high speed.

         22  It's great, it's wonderful, but it can't do -- let

         23  me ask you guys: how many of you folks watch

         24  television or think that's important in this

         25  society? Okay, that will require somewhere between
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          2  eight and 15 megabits in 2009, that's M peg 4

          3  state-of-the-art compression -- give me another

          4  minute. Okay, state-of-the-art compression. That's

          5  what you need. That's what high speed is. The

          6  wireless is wonderful, and I'm all for it. It will

          7  give you mobility and it may be free. But what

          8  you've got to do is you've got to look at Thomas

          9  Dunne and say, question one, are you going to bring

         10  Fios to the Bronx?

         11                 Stu, who talked a few minutes ago as

         12  a hero, five years ago he went to the housing

         13  projects in the Bronx and delivered 30 megabits,

         14  less than Verizon was charging for a meg and a half.

         15  Okay, Howard, the question is, are you going to

         16  bring Doxis 3 0 (phonetic) into New York, so that we

         17  can catch up with Paris and Montreal and other

         18  places? And when are you going to bring it, and are

         19  you going to bring that to everybody in New York?

         20                 DEAN BIRDSELL: And we'll make that

         21  quota. Thank you very much.

         22                 Are there questions for Mr.

         23  Breitbart?

         24                 MR. BURSTEIN: No, I'm not Mr.

         25  Breitbart. Dave Burstein.

                                                            95

          1  COMMITTEE ON TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 DEAN BIRDSELL: I'm sorry, for Mr.

          3  Burstein.

          4                 MR. BURSTEIN: Sorry about that. All

          5  us pink people look alike, just like nine out of ten

          6  folks on that committee up top happen to look at the

          7  moment.

          8                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Questions for anyone

          9  who looks like for Mr. Burstein?

         10                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: We may all look

         11  alike, but we don't all think alike.

         12                 MR. BURSTEIN: Well, you are really

         13  knocking yourself out to give everybody in New York

         14  broadband cheap. There's two folks on this committee

         15  whose job is to make money for their companies. They

         16  can bring broadband to New York. There's a question

         17  about what's been in the Bronx. It turns out that

         18  Verizon and Time Warner in 2009 will have a network

         19  that can bring 100 megabits to every home in the

         20  Bronx for what they're charging for broadband now,

         21  easily. That's what Fios is, that's what Doxis 3 0

         22  is. That's what's actually in the ground. It then

         23  becomes a political question, whether you get these

         24  guys to deliver it to everybody, and whether we

         25  happen to get the same price in New York, as
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          2  Gilbert's competitors in Paris are selling financial

          3  real estate to people getting there. Sorry, that's

          4  politics and I should talk geek, not politics. I

          5  have an ability in geek.

          6                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Well, I have a

          7  sort of analogy question for you, and I think then

          8  the Committee would sort of like to move on to the

          9  next speaker. In 1860, 1870, I'm not really the

         10  historian here, but one out of ten New Yorkers was

         11  dying of tuberculosis, diptheria, and other

         12  diseases, and New York City embarked on what would

         13  be equivalent of 20 or 30 billion dollars to build a

         14  water aqueduct system to deliver fresh water to New

         15  York, and I think a good argument that you made is

         16  that New York City's advantage in the industrial age

         17  and becoming the capital of the free world in the

         18  industrial age is a large part due to the fact that

         19  it had fresh, clean water.

         20                 In those days, before the aqueduct

         21  system was built and designed, water was delivered

         22  in horse-drawn wagons and there were companies that

         23  were delivering the horse-drawn wagons water to New

         24  Yorkers, and if you were to extrapolate to 2007 who,

         25  if we take broadband and think of it as fresh, clean
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          2  water, for our ability to be able to grow into the

          3  leading City of the 21st century, not the leading

          4  City in the 20th, which companies do you think are

          5  the ones that are driving the horse-drawn wagons

          6  filled with enclosed bandwidth and limited amounts?

          7  And if you could answer that question, do you think

          8  you should rely on those companies to invest the 20

          9  or 30 billion dollars to build an equivalent

         10  aqueduct system for broadband for the 21st century?

         11                 MR. BURSTEIN: A couple of things

         12  right to your question. First, I happen to believe

         13  in making this happen. I also believe in the real

         14  world.

         15                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: I just would ask

         16  you specifically if you could, instead of making

         17  another statement, because I think we all understand

         18  where you're coming from.

         19                 MR. BURSTEIN: Yes, but you made a

         20  real big mistake, and in importance to the issue.

         21  You just said it would cost 20 or 30 billion

         22  dollars. I was going to ask Howard with his capital

         23  budget to deliver it, and it's a tenth of that or a

         24  20th of that to do what you're talking about. That's

         25  the kind of --
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          2                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: That's fine.

          3  Forget the numbers. Forget the numbers. Just answer

          4  the question.

          5                 MR. BURSTEIN: Shouldn't we count on

          6  Time Warner and Verizon to give us the network in

          7  2012? The real world, I love the municipal network,

          8  but I'm not going to get it in New York City. I'm

          9  going to be dependent on what we get out of Verizon

         10  and Time Warner.

         11                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Cablevision in the

         12  Bronx.

         13                 MR. BURSTEIN: Cablevision in the

         14  Bronx, apologies for that. I should have known that,

         15  but I'm the DSL guy, not the cable guy, okay? And if

         16  we care about what we're actually getting for 95

         17  percent of the people, I'd love to go where you're

         18  going. But the reality is these guys are going to

         19  build the networks, and we have to figure out how to

         20  make their network affordable, good, and available

         21  to everybody in New York.

         22                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 MR. BURSTEIN: Yes.

         25                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much,
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          2  Mr. Burstein.

          3                 I call Steve Masur from Masur Law.

          4                 MR. MASUR: Hi. How you doing? I'm

          5  Steve Masur from Masur Law. The reason I thought it

          6  would be interesting to present is because we're

          7  just a law firm that represents a number of

          8  companies in New York and elsewhere in the

          9  technology industry, and what I wanted to talk about

         10  is just some business models that would allow for

         11  the public access for broadband.

         12                 One of the things that we did is to

         13  work with a company called "Wi-Fi Salon," in

         14  completing a sponsorship program which allowed for

         15  the provision of Wi-Fi access in New York City's

         16  parks, sponsored by Nokia. So, that's why I thought

         17  it would be interesting to talk about the business

         18  models that support this.

         19                 And I also have the ability to answer

         20  any legal issues there are. I'm not going to address

         21  that, but if the committee has any questions, I'm

         22  happy to help in any way I could.

         23                 So, essentially, the way I see it,

         24  there are three main categories and business models

         25  for providing public Wi-Fi and broadband, and one is
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          2  the free market, and that's what we have now. And

          3  the trouble with free market is it doesn't address

          4  the problem of the digital divide.

          5                 Another one is government

          6  provisioning and the trouble with that is that it's

          7  expensive for taxpayers and there is insufficient

          8  market accountability, which could lead to bad

          9  service. So, what that leaves us with is something

         10  of a mix of public supported private provision using

         11  government incentives to help spur a market to

         12  address the community need for public Wi-Fi.

         13                 So, essentially what we have then is

         14  an RFP process in which the government asks for

         15  private companies to help to create a network. And

         16  some of the incentives that could work for that

         17  would be tax incentives. Alone this probably would

         18  not be sufficient, unless they are capable being

         19  extended to those companies' other businesses,

         20  instead of just being a, you can write off your

         21  costs for this, that's probably not sufficient

         22  unless you were able to provide other incentives.

         23                 The other idea that I had was the

         24  promotional opportunities of this, and that's what

         25  you see in San Francisco and other places where
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          2  Google and Earthlink and others are providing

          3  broadband, they've been given essentially the

          4  equivalent of like a stadium for a promotional

          5  opportunity, the Staple Center, the Verizon Center,

          6  if larger companies that could provide these

          7  services were given those abilities then that would

          8  be something they could impart, support the

          9  provisioning of broadband access.

         10                 And the last idea is essentially

         11  restricted market access. So, what that is, is this

         12  is our network we can provide ads on this network,

         13  we can charge for this network in a regulated

         14  environment, in which broadband is provided not only

         15  for places where those ads would come back to the

         16  company, but also in places where some of the

         17  problems that were previously presented, especially

         18  by the students, would be addressed.

         19                 So, my final statement is that it's

         20  not a trivial or cheap problem to solve, and you'll

         21  need to provide enough incentives for businesses to

         22  participate.

         23                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you, Mr. Masur.

         24                 Any questions for Mr. Masur?

         25                 Thank you very much, sir.
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          2                 MR. MASUR: Thank you.

          3                 DEAN BIRSDELL: Our last listed

          4  witness is Seth Johnson, from Dynamic Platform

          5  Standards Project.

          6                 MR. JOHNSON: Hi. Thank you, Broadband

          7  Advisory Committee, and Councilwoman Brewer, for

          8  this opportunity to address connectivity and access

          9  to high-speed Internet.

         10                 I wanted to make a couple of comments

         11  before I start. I was looking through the materials

         12  here, and I hope you have some more materials, but I

         13  don't see a definition of the Internet here.

         14  Broadband is not a very good term for the goal of

         15  actually empowering communities and giving people

         16  real opportunity. It's necessary to understand the

         17  nature of the Internet. I speak for a group of

         18  people who have signed onto something called "The

         19  Dynamic Platform Standards Project." There's a

         20  legislative proposal, a federal legislative

         21  proposal. It's designed to bring technical clarity

         22  to a debate that's going on that we have only, I

         23  don't know if we actually mention it here, the Net

         24  Neutrality Debate.

         25                 It's designed to point out why, what
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          2  it is about the network has made us have uniform

          3  treatment of application thus far. And if you go to

          4  DPS Project.com, I will also be sending materials to

          5  you, you will see how we define that.

          6                 And I want to submit that broadband

          7  connectivity is not the key issue here. The key

          8  issue is Internet connectivity, okay? Broadband is

          9  not a very good category for trying to empower end

         10  users who want real connectivity to the Internet.

         11  The problem of access to high-speed Internet is that

         12  the phone and cable providers don't want to deliver

         13  the Internet at high speed. They've explicitly

         14  stated that.

         15                 The reason for this is, well, with

         16  the Internet, as defined, by standards is generic

         17  and flexible. That means that every user at an end

         18  can develop whatever application they please, okay?

         19  Whereas the network providers propose to develop

         20  application themselves, and, therefore, make it

         21  difficult for the end-user to compete.

         22                 It's at bottom a way of

         23  communicating, it let's anybody who connects, their

         24  connection is a unique way of publishing the

         25  information between users.
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          2                 Now, once they get connected, and

          3  that's what you're addressing, the fact that people

          4  have so far been able to expect the uniform

          5  treatment of information comes from the design of

          6  the Internet. And it's not that everybody follows a

          7  policy of equality, it's how it's been designed by

          8  the Internet society and the Internet Engineering

          9  Task Force.

         10                 In order to support all sorts of

         11  things, and to get technical, I'm going to try to

         12  keep this colloquial, so you can understand more

         13  easily, this is something that is not gone into

         14  enough, in order to support all the sorts of things

         15  that you could come up with on a connection, the

         16  Internet Platform turns everything you do into

         17  little pieces, and the pieces are sent independently

         18  from each other, through whatever routers get them

         19  where they need to go, whether those routers are run

         20  by incumbents or not, so they can reach the whole

         21  world. Then on the other end you pool all the pieces

         22  together and put them in a structured order that you

         23  want.

         24                 I'm going to try to wind up. Now,

         25  this is the same technique of digitizing
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          2  information, the little pieces that gives you the

          3  flexibility of your computer. Now, what's happening

          4  is that the proposal to offer tiered applications

          5  service take away that generosity. Okay? And what is

          6  necessary, and I recommend that you do, is refer

          7  this up to Spitzer as part of his Statewide

          8  initiative for broadband, is to stipulate that if we

          9  want to give broadband access, we must include a

         10  definition of the Internet.

         11                 The other thing I want to do, a

         12  rather pointed thing --

         13                 DEAN BIRDSELL: I'm going to have to

         14  ask you to stop with that first point, Mr. Johnson.

         15  Thank you very much.

         16                 Are there any questions for Mr.

         17  Johnson?

         18                 MR. JOHNSON: I did want to suggest

         19  that you ought to refer to the Internet society.

         20  They ought to be participating in this committee,

         21  because they are in charge of the standard. And if

         22  you let the practices that are being proposed go

         23  forward by the incumbents, they will tend to

         24  override our consensus participatory standard

         25  making. You won't be able to do that anymore.
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          2                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you, sir.

          3                 We are now moving into the next phase

          4  of this hearing, which is the public forum. A number

          5  of you have indicated that you would like to speak

          6  to us this morning, and I would invite you in order.

          7  Just simply in the order in which we received these

          8  cards, to come to the podium.

          9                 There are a number of people who

         10  would like to speak. I would like to ask you to

         11  please adhere to the two-minute rule. When you hear

         12  that buzzer go, that's two minutes. So, when you

         13  hear that happen, please just conclude the thought

         14  that you have at that moment, and then stand for

         15  questions. I'd be very appreciative.

         16                 I'm very eager to hear from all of

         17  you. It's important to hear from you and that's why

         18  we're here today. And I'd like to call first

         19  Margaret Boughman.

         20                 MS. BOUGHMAN: Hi. My name is Margaret

         21  Boughman. I'm a senior at the Bronx High School of

         22  Science. And I wanted to respond to the students at

         23  Brandeis High School, because they spoke about how

         24  Internet access limited their opportunities and

         25  their friends' opportunities, and I wanted to speak
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          2  about how it sort of gave me a lot of opportunities.

          3                 I first became in the digital divide

          4  when I did a project for the Quality of Life Program

          5  on its important for academic success. And I did

          6  research on this project through my school and

          7  discovered that the average student at my school,

          8  which has very competitive and academically

          9  motivated students, spends two and a half hours each

         10  day on the Internet for academic purposes. And I

         11  also did research on the availability of Internet

         12  access to the libraries, usually 30 to 45 minutes,

         13  and as the students from the Brandeis High School

         14  mentioned, students generally have one-half to two

         15  hour per week, which is a huge difference, compared

         16  to two and a half hours per day.

         17                 I also want to talk about in my own

         18  life how it's given me so many opportunities, in

         19  terms of AP classes, most of the homework is only

         20  available on-line, and if you miss a day, you're

         21  supposed to e-mail your teacher, and make the work

         22  up, and really, you have to type all of your

         23  homework.

         24                 I do most of my research for term

         25  papers, and it's also really, I have no idea how
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          2  anyone would get through the college process without

          3  Internet because most college applications are only

          4  available on-line. I did all 12 of my college

          5  applications through the Internet and most of them

          6  have no alternative.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

          9                 Are there any questions? Yes, there

         10  is.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Do you think that

         12  most of the students at Bronx Science have the

         13  Internet and feel the same way that you do about the

         14  resources that are available that way?

         15                 MS. BOUGHMAN: I kind of get the

         16  impression the most students at my school have

         17  availability, or Internet access, at least, in upper

         18  level classes, which is advanced placement honors

         19  classes. But I mean, I've been in classes where

         20  students, for some reason they can't type up the

         21  homework because they're not at their house, or

         22  they're staying at a different house, and the

         23  teachers have given them a hard time. I do think

         24  that most people have Internet access at my school.

         25                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.
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          2                 I'm about to call, and pardon me if I

          3  mangle a name, I can't read it very well here, but

          4  Robert Ganetti, from Community Board 2.

          5                 Robert? I will pass on to the next

          6  speaker. John Greiner from Legal Services.

          7                 MR. GREINER: Good morning, Council

          8  Member Brewer and members of the Broadband Advisory

          9  Committee.

         10                 I just wanted to briefly express sort

         11  of the impact of broadband on our organization as an

         12  enterprise on the work we do, in terms of delivering

         13  services to clients, free legal assistance to

         14  low-income folks, and to the community groups that

         15  we helped with our economic development projects.

         16                 As a program with 17 offices across

         17  the City, mostly in low-income neighborhoods, we've

         18  been directly impacted by the high-cost of Internet,

         19  of high-speed Internet access, and the reliability.

         20  We've had many outages. We've had to rebuild

         21  networks with dual connections, which cost more

         22  money. Ultimately we're depriving more New York City

         23  residents of our services because we spend more

         24  dollars providing that network.

         25                 In delivering services to low-income
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          2  clients, the ability to communicate with our clients

          3  over the Internet and to share information with them

          4  and writing would greatly increase our efficiency

          5  and ultimately our clients' ability to provide for

          6  the assistance they need in solving their legal

          7  needs. And for our clients themselves having access

          8  to the Internet, resources like lawhelp.org, we've

          9  developed with other legal providers, so they can

         10  learn about and effectuate their rights, even

         11  without an attorney is critical. And that goes

         12  across the board. It is the democracy of our City,

         13  of our State, of our country, is moving on line and

         14  our low-income clients in our communities are being

         15  left behind.

         16                 In terms of economic development,

         17  where we've worked with other non-profits, and

         18  for-profits small and home businesses, I'd like to I

         19  guess kind of echo a previous comment, giving folks

         20  in all communities access to high-quality,

         21  high-speed Internet without restrictions so that

         22  they can essentially host their own businesses is

         23  something that we think is very valuable.

         24                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you. Are there

         25  questions for Mr. Greiner?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: The question I

          3  have is, particularly the small businesses, what is

          4  the -- I believe that a lot of folks, if you don't

          5  have a site to do business, then you're at a

          6  disadvantage. Do you represent some of those kinds

          7  of customers? And also, obviously, with clients how

          8  do you communicate? I guess it's the fold without

          9  the net, but how does that hinder their advantage or

         10  not in court?

         11                 MR. GREINER: Well, with small

         12  businesses and home businesses, a lot of our clients

         13  are rather entrepreneurial and are trying to make a

         14  living as best they can, as home care providers, and

         15  starting up small web-based companies.

         16                 Obviously the cost is a factor but

         17  the availability I think has been a bigger factor.

         18  In restoration plaza in Bedford Stuyvesant, getting

         19  there a lot of non-profit and small businesses in

         20  that immediate vicinity, and getting high speed

         21  Internet from Verizon just for ourselves took about

         22  seven months. And ultimately, actually what's

         23  interesting is that when you get non-profits

         24  bringing in that high-speed Internet, they didn't

         25  bring in Fios, but they brought in fiber, and so the
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          2  way it built out of capacity in Restoration Plaza

          3  and Bedford Stuyvesant than other small businesses

          4  can take advantage of. So, it's a spark. We need

          5  more sparks around the City I think.

          6                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

          7                 I'd next like to call Urtan Ellis

          8  from STOP Program.

          9                 MR. ELLIS: I'd like to thank

         10  Councilman Brewer and all the members of the people

         11  here.

         12                 First of all, I don't think I even

         13  belong here, because everybody up here has had more

         14  education about the Internet than I have. I have an

         15  after school program called STOP, it means Students

         16  and Teachers Organized with Parents against guns,

         17  violence and drugs. And the idea that I have is to

         18  get to the children before they get involved with

         19  guns, violence and drugs, and to give them something

         20  to do that will occupy their mind to show them that

         21  they could get an education and go on beyond the

         22  level of what the street will bring them. And I have

         23  50 children in the program and they're learning

         24  music and they're learning journalism. And to the

         25  journalism class, they're using computers. So, we
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          2  have the program at the Marble Hill Community

          3  Center, that's in the New York City Housing, and it

          4  just was available to me when I started the program,

          5  and so we don't have Internet and I want to go on

          6  and expand it to make it available to high school

          7  kids who don't know that education is important to

          8  them. And so that if they pass by the Marble Hill

          9  Community Center and St. Stephen's Methodist Church

         10  on their way to high school, they'll see it's some

         11  place where they can come and learn how to use the

         12  computer, and maybe eventually we'll get them on the

         13  Internet, because we don't have the Internet in

         14  either of those places.

         15                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you, sir.

         16                 Are there questions for Mr. Ellis?

         17                 Thank you very much, sir.

         18                 MR. ELLIS: You're welcome.

         19                 DEAN BIRDSELL: I'd next like to call

         20  to the podium Rick Jungers, from the Manhattan

         21  Neighborhood Network. Mr. Jungers.

         22                 MR. JUNGERS: Hello. My name is Rick

         23  Jungers. I pay about $45 a month for Internet,

         24  broadband Internet access, and I value what I get

         25  through it, but if my circumstances would change, it
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          2  would be one of the things I would have to give up

          3  pretty quickly.

          4                 I'm mostly interested in public

          5  policy and public interest provisions. I think we

          6  need most of the dialogue I've heard around

          7  broadband and some of the legislation that's going

          8  on, is talking about rates only, and I think it

          9  excludes questions of inclusion and exclusion. When

         10  I think of digital divide, I think of an information

         11  divide and a communication divide. Who is going to

         12  get access to quality information? Who is going to

         13  be able to participate in the public conversation

         14  using these emerging technologies?

         15                 In 2008 New York City will enter into

         16  a franchise cable agreement with the very companies

         17  that are going to be both the major players in

         18  broadband deployment as well. In terms of our public

         19  policy and our legislation, are we considering

         20  convergence and considering what this will become,

         21  and how can we gain public interest provisions from

         22  it?

         23                 I think we need to think beyond

         24  infrastructure. We have to establish the basic

         25  infrastructure but we also have to provide people

                                                            115

          1  COMMITTEE ON TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  with the tools, the training and the organizational

          3  development to be able to utilize those tools.

          4                 Coming from a public access

          5  background, I think public access community media

          6  centers, along with community technology centers,

          7  schools, libraries and other partners, would be good

          8  partners in terms of providing this type of service

          9  to the community.

         10                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you, sir. Are

         11  there any questions for Mr. Jungers? Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 I would like to call Luis Osorio from

         14  ProCo Technology, the Compass Computer Center.

         15                 MR. OSORIO: Thank you. Council Member

         16  Brewer and Committee members, thank you for this

         17  opportunity. I'm going to hopefully be brief. I'm

         18  representing the Compass Computer Center under the

         19  auspices of ProCo Technology. We're located on East

         20  180th Street, between Belmont and Hughes Avenue.

         21  We're surrounded by the Crips, the Bloods, the

         22  Chingerlings and the Savage Scub (phonetic) and the

         23  Latin Kings.

         24                 Our centers right now services 4,900

         25  community residents, 60 percent of them are youths
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          2  from five to 17 years old, 40 percent are adults, 30

          3  percent 18 to 40, and ten percent 45 plus. Right now

          4  we are servicing, in conjunction with ASPIRA 70

          5  Spanish-speaking adults receiving training right now

          6  in computer literacy and approximately 15 graduated

          7  with competencies in advanced computer sciences.

          8                 We also provide 30 jobs so far this

          9  year for adults and unsubsidized employment, 80

         10  adults have received on-line e-mail addresses, and

         11  now they can receive interviews.

         12                 To respond to questions by Committee

         13  Member Rodriguez, our center right now averages

         14  about 150 children a week, and we provide free

         15  access, free access to the Internet, and we give

         16  them each two hours a day so they can do their

         17  homework. Imagine two hours a day.

         18                 We're open five days. We were open

         19  six days a week but because of budget constraints we

         20  cannot open for the sixth day. So, right now we're

         21  going to be dropping out approximately 150 children

         22  that we would service that one Saturday. We opened

         23  for eight hours, nine hours on Saturdays that would

         24  not be getting those services.

         25                 We're the only center in that
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          2  particular area. That's the poorest congressional

          3  district that we know of, it's Jose Serrano, and so

          4  to say that, right now because of budget

          5  constraints, we would not be able to provide more

          6  than 150 children a week.

          7                 Any questions?

          8                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you, sir.

          9                 Questions?

         10                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: What is the biggest

         11  deterrent to expand what you're doing? I know you

         12  mentioned that funding -- did you say funding is an

         13  issue?

         14                 MR. OSORIO: Yes. We have right now 40

         15  complete units. We just received $30,000 worth of

         16  computers from AT&T and ASPIRA. Per Scholas has also

         17  donated computers. So, our issue is not the capital.

         18  We have that. We have the hardware, we have the

         19  software, we'll have all that. We just don't have

         20  operational monies.

         21                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: If you have a

         22  recommendation for this commission, as a

         23  representative of a minority community, specifically

         24  the Latino community, what would be that? One, two

         25  quick recommendations?
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          2                 MR. OSORIO: One of the biggest

          3  recommendations, number one, is that we just don't

          4  have necessary funds to be available to expanding

          5  this type of initiative throughout the City of New

          6  York. Let me tell you something, ten percent of the

          7  4,900 people are not from our community.

          8  Four-hundred and ninety of them are outside of the

          9  Bronx, which tells us people are coming from outside

         10  of the Bronx to our facility, as far as Far

         11  Rockaway, to get this service. So, this type of free

         12  access to the community must be duplicated.

         13                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Is language a problem?

         14                 MR. OSORIO: Language is not a

         15  problem, as far as through the computer we can put

         16  them in the languages, and all of our instructors

         17  are bilingual. Not necessarily bicultural, but

         18  they're bilingual.

         19                 So, language is not a problem, once

         20  you are able to engage the clientele. Because our

         21  computers are, everything speaks in Spanish and we

         22  have also different, in Mandarin, we have a big

         23  population in Mandarin.

         24                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: The Peer Research

         25  Center just published this week a report that
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          2  indicates that Hispanics are only 53 percent

          3  involved with the Internet. And those that are not

          4  are not involved, because language is one of the

          5  main issues and affordability is the next one; do

          6  you agree --

          7                 MR. OSORIO: I agree number one

          8  affordability. Absolutely. Our center, as I said

          9  before, we're all 100 percent bilingual, so through

         10  ASPIRA and their funding source, we've been able to

         11  reach out to the Latino community and provide the

         12  services in Spanish. Once we get them inside, the

         13  computer language, we have a complete course that's

         14  done in Spanish. In fact, that's where I should be

         15  now. But, yes, we have right now, right now 60

         16  students as I speak are learning the computers. And

         17  these, by the way, these are Latinos, predominantly

         18  from the Dominican Republic, South America, and the

         19  average age is about 35 years old.

         20                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Thank you.

         21                 MR. PARISER: It's very clear what

         22  you're doing for the young people. You're surrounded

         23  by a lot of small businesses.

         24                 MR. OSORIO: Absolutely.

         25                 MR. PARISER: What are they doing to
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          2  avail themselves of Internet, and what are you doing

          3  in that regard to help them?

          4                 MR. OSORIO: Well, we also provide

          5  free website development for the small businesses.

          6  We're also doing turbo tax credits, you know -- my

          7  staff is more adapt than I am to that response, but

          8  we do provide through the small business community

          9  seminars as they are needed. We go out and we talk

         10  to the community, we ask them what is it that you'd

         11  be interested in. So, we provide, website is the big

         12  thing over there. Also the other issue is that we

         13  provide them just getting into the e-mails, getting

         14  into the Internet is a big piece, so we do provide

         15  that. We're now looking at trying to do some Excel

         16  training for the community.

         17                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

         18                 MR. OSORIO: Okay. Thank you.

         19                 DEAN BIRDSELL: I would like to invite

         20  Mr. Osorio's colleague, Damian Perez, also from

         21  Compass Computer to the podium.

         22                 MR. PEREZ: Good afternoon, all. It is

         23  an honor to stand before this committee and to stand

         24  here with members of my community.

         25                 I, too, agree and wish to echo the
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          2  concern and urgency of bridging the digital gap. My

          3  name is Damian Perez. I represent ProCo Technology.

          4  ProCo Technology is the incorporated entity that

          5  gives you Compass Computer Center. We are a

          6  not-for-profit organization, 501(c)(3). Our mission

          7  is to provide free computer usage, Internet access

          8  and computer literacy tutoring.

          9                 I think our Borough President stated

         10  it best when he acknowledged that it's not just the

         11  digital divide that we need to bridge but everything

         12  else that gap translates into, the economic

         13  drawbacks from not having the access or the

         14  knowledge of navigating a computer or the Internet

         15  are significant.

         16                 To further what my center manager

         17  Luis Osorio was stating, we do bilingual training

         18  and computer literacy, so we are reaching out to

         19  that bilingual community. We are reaching out to the

         20  Spanish-speaking population who may before have had

         21  problems or issues dealing with computer and

         22  Internet access because they may have been afraid of

         23  the language that is associated with it.

         24                 Our main concern at this moment as an

         25  organization is the operational funding that we
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          2  need. As Luis stated, the capital dollars have been

          3  very helpful in starting up the program, but we are

          4  now in our second year and wish to sustain ourselves

          5  for years to come and still remain to be a staple in

          6  that community. We do need the help for operational

          7  dollars.

          8                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

          9                 Are there any questions for Mr.

         10  Perez?

         11                 Thank you, sir.

         12                 I'd like to call Eddie Johnson, Jr.,

         13  of ILO Info Systems.

         14                 MR. JOHNSON: Good morning.  To Gale

         15  Brewer, I was told to get in contact with you by

         16  Yvette Clarke last May, so that we could look at the

         17  business models for, in terms of doing fixed,

         18  wireless, broadband access that offers high-speed

         19  Internet, and the answer is, it's Philadelphia. I'm

         20  going to say to you that, we were located, ILO Info

         21  Systems, which is a multi-cultural bilingual

         22  networking computer company that was located in

         23  Lower Manhattan that is now transitioning and moving

         24  here to the Bronx. I'm going to say to you that

         25  since then I've been approached by a number of
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          2  global delegations, as far as Iberia, Hamburg,

          3  Germany, and Jing Su Province, China, because they

          4  all have some of the same initiatives in investing

          5  capital in terms of providing high-speed Internet

          6  access for their residents to take part in

          7  e-government, e-health, and to also give other folks

          8  the opportunity who doesn't have it, to be able to

          9  access information on the Internet to make

         10  themselves better.

         11                 I'm glad to be part of this. I'm

         12  committed to being part of this. I know of Wi-Fi

         13  Salon, I know Michael Lewis. I also was part of the

         14  Initiative, the RFP that was put out by New York

         15  City last June, and I'm committed to making sure

         16  that not only a certain segment of the population

         17  gives access to the Internet but the young folks as

         18  well. Just as of yesterday I was talking with one of

         19  the gang members and had them come in and we sat

         20  down and spoke and as soon as we get established I

         21  want to make sure an opportunity is available for

         22  this young person, and I understand he can pull

         23  himself up by his own bootstraps.

         24                 I have to commend the City on the

         25  libraries. The libraries are great compared to some
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          2  of the other libraries outside of New York City, and

          3  I love the transportation here. I am now a new Bronx

          4  citizen here, and whatever this Committee is in need

          5  of, in terms of information to get this initiative

          6  moved forward, I'm committed to doing it. I am a

          7  gold partner with Proxin (phonetic) out of San Jose,

          8  California, which does enterprise wireless

          9  deployment, so again, I thank you for this

         10  opportunity, and you're all doing a great job.

         11                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you. Questions

         12  for Mr. Johnson.

         13                 Thank you very much, sir.

         14                 I'd like to ask Brenda Jones and

         15  Andres Villar, from Mount Hope Housing.

         16                 MS. JONES: Good afternoon. I'm here

         17  to tell you about Mount Hope Housing Company. As you

         18  know, our President and CEO is on the panel. He is

         19  not here today because he is in Asia trying to get

         20  some information and resources about how they do

         21  things there so he can bring it back to the Bronx,

         22  and specifically to Mount Hope.

         23                 Mount Hope Housing Company, we are

         24  partners with Verizon Communications, which I've

         25  heard a lot of you talk about, to bring high speed
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          2  broadband Internet services to our community

          3  residents.

          4                 As you know, Mount Hope has 32

          5  buildings which we manage and how the approximately

          6  5,000 low- to moderate-income residents. We've just

          7  completed wiring our building in January of this

          8  year. We count 1,170 units that are wired. They have

          9  the availability of the high-speed Internet service,

         10  powered by Verizon enhanced community and satellite

         11  TV, which is being brought to them for direct

         12  television services.

         13                 So, now that we have wired our

         14  buildings, we are focused on content. We have

         15  programs that teach people how to use computers. We

         16  have also teached (sic) them what is available on

         17  Internet and how it will help them with their lives.

         18                 We look at the use of a high speed as

         19  a community development tool. As you know, we're

         20  community development organizations, so our emphasis

         21  is not just from bringing the access but also

         22  providing them with content that will help them

         23  improve their lives.

         24                 This past September we had a first

         25  ever in the Bronx a technology carnival, which
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          2  brought the high speed out into the streets, 66

          3  computers, and we allowed people to find out,

          4  discover what they could do with technologies and

          5  cooperation and partnership with cable.

          6                 Okay, any questions?

          7                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: One quick

          8  question. Of all of those residents there in Mount

          9  Hope, how many do you know for a fact actually are

         10  now taking advantage of high speed?

         11                 MS. JONES: We've had some challenges.

         12  As I said, we just completed in January and we are

         13  doing our marketing now. Some of the things we have

         14  looked at and some of the things that you brought

         15  up, yes, it is a thing about the cost. We recently

         16  were doing a March Madness Campaign, where we

         17  reduced the prices, to get a high-speed Internet it

         18  is a challenge. And also we are partnered with Per

         19  Scholas to help bring in the hardware. Because,

         20  again, our community that we're dealing with, our

         21  residents, some of them are on fixed income and some

         22  of them are low-wage earners. And part of it also is

         23  the education to teach them why they need to -- you

         24  know, what can the Internet do for them and how is

         25  it going to help change their lives.
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          2                 PANEL PARTICIPANT: So, you don't

          3  really have any numbers at this point?

          4                 MS. JONES: Yes. My number person is

          5  here.

          6                 MR. VILLAR: Yes, out of the 1,170

          7  residential units that we have we have approximately

          8  140, a little bit more than ten percent of them

          9  residents, connected to the Verizon high-speed

         10  Internet.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I just wanted to

         12  say, I want to the street fair on computers, it was

         13  fabulous. And congratulations on what you're doing.

         14                 MS. JONES: Thank you.

         15                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

         16                 I'd like to call Alexis Lewis of

         17  Bronx Community Wireless.

         18                 MR. LEWIS: Good day. Well, I'm a

         19  technologist, a wireless engineer, worked in the

         20  Caribbean like seven years for a wireless company,

         21  and I've heard everyone give statistics in terms of

         22  the pricing for Internet up here. In the Caribbean

         23  it's 70 US just for a T1 line, and for residential

         24  use it's about, let's say around 50 US. Okay,

         25  there's a lot of infrastructure already there, and I
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          2  think one of the main things that hamper the network

          3  going up is the engineers. Once you have good

          4  engineers, they can use the technology that's there

          5  to build on the network that's reliable, and for

          6  speed that people can use.

          7                 They have given statistics about 100

          8  gigabit lines in China, but it's shared, by the way,

          9  with all the people that are in China. When you

         10  break that down between whoever gets access, I mean,

         11  I would like it's almost close to what we'd be

         12  having up here too.

         13                 So, basically, like I said, it's

         14  between engineering and going out there and actually

         15  having the residents and the business owners get

         16  involved in building a community itself, as opposed

         17  to going -- well, I work corporate and I know how

         18  that works, and I'm not too much in favor of going

         19  towards corporate, because it's really about money,

         20  and people are out there looking for money. We have

         21  surveyed an area that's about a mile in radius and

         22  for the past eight months, and we've seen, you know,

         23  how much people actually -- just seeing the

         24  statistics of what our access points give, how much

         25  people actually know about wireless, because it
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          2  picks up wireless and we use that router, and we

          3  say, hey, there's a reason why we actually got that

          4  router. So we know there is a few people in that

          5  radius that would be in the Gun Hill and White

          6  Plains area that I would say know the wireless. A

          7  lot of people out there know about Internet, but

          8  they need cheaper Internet. Our rates range from $20

          9  monthly to $25 monthly. So far we are in Antigua,

         10  here in New York, Atlanta and California.

         11                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

         12  Are there questions for Mr. Lewis.

         13                 Thank you, sir.

         14                 I'd like to ask to the podium Charles

         15  Petz. Mr. Petz?

         16                 Professor McMullin?

         17                 PROFESSOR McMULLIN: Just commenting

         18  on a few things. We talk about technology. You heard

         19  one of my most articulate graduates, Jonathan Evans,

         20  speak to you. Most of the students that come to us

         21  are not as articulate, because in many ways failed

         22  the New York City public school system. They say

         23  "You don't have no," and they speak like that

         24  because they were allowed to get out of the City's

         25  school system not speaking proper English. It's not
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          2  forced in their own communities.

          3                 One thing the Internet can bring to

          4  young people is an appreciation of the non-technical

          5  things. The question I asked Jonathan earlier, do

          6  the employees of employers have familiarity with the

          7  Internet so they can encourage their employers to

          8  use it? And the answer is no. If we can bring not

          9  only the Internet but computer powers to homes, and

         10  we can let people have at a very young age some

         11  exposure to both culture, to proper English.

         12                 We heard you all talking about

         13  writing programs and young people's programs.

         14  They're great, people have to go to them. We aren't

         15  going to have the democracization (sic) we speak

         16  about, we aren't going to have the educated

         17  workforce to compete, if people don't speak the

         18  proper language, don't have an appreciation of what

         19  goes on beyond the immediate neighborhood.

         20                 Now, Jonathan is an example of an

         21  articulate person who does this. Many of the people

         22  of course aren't. They mentioned Mount Hope, and

         23  Monroe has been a partner with Mount Hope in

         24  training people. But then we're getting to people

         25  who are older, who aren't in the process of being
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          2  the competitive people that we want people here in

          3  the Bronx to be.

          4                 So, I think whatever we can do, not

          5  only to bring Internet into homes, but bring

          6  computers into homes of young children can only be

          7  helpful.

          8                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you, sir.

          9                 Questions for Professor McMullin?

         10  Thank you.

         11                 Before I bring our last speaker to

         12  the podium, let me just say for those of you who

         13  might have wanted to speak but couldn't fit it in

         14  time, we do have a blog for the Broadband Advisory

         15  Committee that you will find at

         16  nycbroadband.blogspot.com, and we can give you that

         17  address on your way out today, if you would like to

         18  comment after the session.

         19                 I would now like to invite Angel

         20  Aracena up.

         21                 MR. ARACENA: Good afternoon, panel,

         22  honorable Council members. My name is Angel Aracena

         23  and I represent Phipps Community Development

         24  Corporation. I'm their Educational Technology and

         25  Educational Director. Our site at West Farms
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          2  services 500 people a week. One of the things that

          3  distinguishes us is our ability to serve ESL

          4  clients. We also service employment clients. What

          5  that means is, not only do I have a stand-alone

          6  program that teaches people how to use Microsoft

          7  Office applications photoshop, the Internet and

          8  e-mail, but it also sustains our retention and

          9  people that we serve because we have in our same

         10  site facility people that are in our employment

         11  training program and also ESL students.

         12                 All of our classes are bilingual. We

         13  also have a website that is reaching 4,000 hits

         14  every month. It's one of the -- the only stand-alone

         15  website that Phipps Houses Group, our parent

         16  company, had.

         17                 Just to make things brief, one of the

         18  recommendations I'd like to make is I've heard a lot

         19  of people talking about giving broadband, and I

         20  think that's an excellent idea, but when you are

         21  sending that kind of technology out there, there are

         22  also certain dangers that I don't think have been

         23  brought up yet, and that is Internet safety. The

         24  National Center for Missing and Exploited Children

         25  said that one in five children in 2006 were
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          2  approached, sexually solicited on line, and if you

          3  were to make broadband available, one of the

          4  parameters you should have set in our educational

          5  outreach programs to parents so that they are

          6  informed, they are aware of the tragedies that you

          7  so often see on the news.

          8                 Again, I just want to mention that

          9  our dynamic ability to service so many groups of

         10  people at our site has enlightened us to one

         11  obstacle that you should also have to keep in mind,

         12  and that is what prevents us from serving more

         13  people in our community, low-income families, is

         14  they are forced to stay at home because they do not

         15  have child care services. So, if they would have

         16  child care services here on-site or within the

         17  neighborhood, they could then attend our classes

         18  and, you know, benefit from technology in our open

         19  lab sessions.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you.

         22                 Questions for Mr. Aracena?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I just want to

         24  offer Phipps congratulations on your programs. How

         25  many of your families have home computers, as
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          2  opposed to coming to your center? And do you think

          3  that more should with the proper education as you

          4  described?

          5                 MR. ARACENA: At least 30 to 35

          6  percent of people we serve -- no, I'm sorry, 60

          7  percent of the group we serve have a computer at

          8  home, but only 25 percent have Internet capability

          9  at home as well.

         10                 Should this be available? Absolutely,

         11  yes. Because if a family at home has access to the

         12  Internet, the usual case is that the young child or

         13  student is the one who is most versed in using that

         14  technology, or as parents or custodians, they do

         15  not.

         16                 So, it's important that we teach the

         17  people who were not part of that generation of the

         18  Internet and e-mail technology, that they also be

         19  incorporated and educated on that.

         20                 DEAN BIRDSELL: Thank you very much.

         21                 MR. ARACENA: Thank you.

         22                 DEAN BIRDSELL: That brings us to the

         23  conclusion of the public testimony.

         24                 I would like to thank everybody who

         25  has spoken today. I'd like to thank everybody who
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          2  came here. As Jonathan Evans reminded us, and during

          3  his remarks earlier today, sharing information is

          4  enormously important, as we couldn't do our work

          5  without the efforts that you've made here. So we're

          6  very, very grateful. Thank you very much. And I'd

          7  like to toss this back over to Council Member

          8  Brewer.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you. I

         10  certainly want to thank the panel. I know democracy

         11  is tough, it's very time consuming, but it sure is

         12  helpful for all of us to work with the Mayor's

         13  Office, particularly with Wendy, and to be able to

         14  listen to some suggestions and then figure out what

         15  we're going to do to incorporate them into the

         16  deliberations.

         17                 So, I certainly want to thank Dean

         18  Birdsell for participating and leading us, and

         19  everyone who came here today, certainly the college

         20  has been great, the Bronx has been great, and I

         21  certainly also thank Bruce Ly and the incredible

         22  staff for putting this together. Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 This hearing is concluded.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 1:10 p.m.)
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